
 

 
        05th September , 2019 

BSE Ltd., 
Corporate Relationship Department, 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Fort,  
Mumbai – 400 001. 

          
                                                                    BSE Scrip Code: 532359 
 
 

Sub: Submission of Annual Report under Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

Dear Sir/ Madam,  

Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), we are 

submitting herewith the Annual Report of the Company along with the Notice of Annual 

General Meeting for the financial year 2018-19, which is being dispatched / sent to the 

members by the permitted mode(s). 

The Annual Report containing the AGM Notice is also uploaded on the Company’s website 

viz. www.hitkitglobal.com 

Kindly take the above information on your record & oblige. 

 

Thanking you. 

 
Yours Faithfully 
For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 

 
 
Ishita Sanghavi  
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer. 

 

 

 

Encl.: Annual Report for the F.Y. 2018-19 
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                                                                       NOTICE 

 
Notice is hereby given that the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of Hit Kit Global 

Solutions Limited will be held on Saturday, 28thSeptember, 2019 at 10.30 a.m. at Kamal Banquet 
Hall, 188/1500-1501, Best Road, Opp. Neeta Bldg., Near Oshiwara Bus Depot, Motilal Nagar I, 
Goregaon West, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400104 to transact the following business: 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 

31stMarch 2019 and the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon. 
 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

2. To approve appointment of Mrs. Premlata Purohit (DIN: 07846020) as an Independent 
Director of the  Company: 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
  

“RESOLVED THAT Mrs. Premlata Purohit (DIN: 07846020)who was appointed as an 
Additional Director of the Company with effect from 13th November, 2018 by the Board 
of Directors and who holds office up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting of the Company in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), 
but who is eligible for appointment and in respect of whom the Company has received a 
notice in writing from a member under Section 160 (1) of the Act proposing her  
candidature for the office of a Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent 
Director of the Company.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with 
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions of the Act, the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof] and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, the appointment of Mrs. Premlata Purohit 
(DIN: 07846020), who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for 
independence as provided in Section 149 (6) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder and 
Regulation 16 (1)(b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2015 as amended, and who is eligible for appointment as an Independent 
Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, for a term of 5 (five) consecutive 
years commencing from 13th November, 2018, be and is hereby approved. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby 
authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution.”.” 

 

3. To approve re-appointment of Mr. Arvind B. Sharma (DIN: 03580605) as an Independent 
Director of the Company: 

               
             To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution: 
 
           “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule 

IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force, applicable provisions of 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, Mr. Arvind B. Sharma (DIN: 03580605), whose term of office as an Independent 
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Director expires on the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting and who is eligible for 
reappointment, be and is hereby re-appointed for a second term of 5 (five) years as an 
Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation and who shall hold office of Independent 
Director up to the conclusion of 36thAnnual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 
calendar year 2024.” 

 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby    
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution including filing of forms to Registrar of Companies and submitting 
necessary intimation with Stock Exchange.” 

 
 

By Order of the Board 
For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 

                                                                                                   sd/-  
Kamal Agrawal 

Managing Director 
 
 
 

Registered Office: 
55, Tirupati Plaza, 1st Floor,  
Tirupati Shopping Centre Premises  
Co-Op. Society Ltd., S.V. Road,  
Santacruz (W), Mumbai-400054. 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: August 13, 2019. 
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NOTES: 

 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 

instead of himself/herself, and the proxy need not be a member of the company. A person can act 
as proxy on behalf of the company. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding 
fifty (50) members and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital 
of the company. 
 

2.  The instrument appointing proxy should however be deposited at the registered office of the 
company not less than forty eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. Proxies submitted 
on behalf of the companies, societies etc. Must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, 
as applicable. 

 
3. Corporate members intending to send their Authorized Representatives to attend the Meeting are 

requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their 
representative to attend and vote on their behalf. 

 
4. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder 

in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote. 
 

 
5. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of members and 

the share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 21stSeptember, 2019 to 

Saturday, 28thSeptember 2019 (both days inclusive), both days inclusive. 
 

6. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the special 
Business to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is annexed hereto. 

 
7. Members who hold shares in electronic form are requested to mention their DP ID and Client ID 

number and those who hold shares in physical form are requested to mention their Folio Number in 
the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at theAGM. 

 
8. For convenience of the Members and proper conduct of the meeting, entry to the meeting venue will 

be regulated by Attendance Slip. Members are requested to sign at the place provided on the 
Attendance Slip and hand it over at the registration counter. 

 
9. Members who are holding Company’s shares in dematerialized form are required to bring details of 

their Depository Account Number for identification. 
 

10. Members desiring any information relating to the accounts are requested to write to the Company 
well in advance so as to enable the management to keep the informationready. 

 
11. All documents referred to in the Notice shall be available for inspection by the Members at the 

Registered Office of the Company during office hours between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working 
day except Sunday & holiday, from the date hereof up to the date of the  Meeting. 

 
12. Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in single name and 

physical form are advised to file nomination in the prescribed Form No. SH-13 in duplicate (which 
will be made available on request) with the Company’s shares transfer agent, in respect of shares 
held in electronic / Demat form, the members may please contact their respective depository 
participant. 

 
13. The SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant 

in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit 
the PAN to their depository participants. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their 
PAN details to the Company or registrar. 

 
14. The Company has been maintaining, inter alia, the following statutory registers at its registered 

office, which are open for inspection in terms of the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 by 
members and others as specified below: 
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- Register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested under section 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, on all working days during business hours. The said Registers shall 
also be produced at the commencement of the annual general meeting of the Company and 
shall remain open and accessible during the continuance of the meeting to a person having the 
right to attend the meeting. 
 

- Register of directors & Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding under section 170 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, on all working days during business hours. The said Registers shall 
be kept open for inspection at the annual general meeting of the Company and shall be made 
accessible to a person attending the meeting. 

 
15. In terms of section 101 and 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Rules made 

thereunder, the listed companies may send the notice of annual general meeting and the Annual 
Report, including Financial statements, Board Report, etc. by electronic mode. The Company is 
accordingly forwarding soft copies of the above referred documents to all those members who have 
registered their email ids with their respective depository participants or with the share transfer 
agent of the Company. 

 
16. Please note that for security reasons, no article/baggage will be allowed at the venue  

of the meeting. 
 

17. Route Map for the directions to the venue of the meeting is available on website of the company 
www.hitkitglobal.com. 

 
18. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting 

and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, members would be entitled to inspect the proxies 
lodged, at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided not less than 3 days written 
notice is given to the Company. 

 
19. To receive shareholders’ communications through electronic means, including Annual Reports and 

Notices, members are requested to kindly register/update their email address with their respective 
depository participants, where shares are held in electronic form. If, however, shares are held in 
physical form, members are advised to register their e-mail address with  M/s Adroit Corporate  
Services Pvt Ltd- prafuls@adroitcorporate.com 

 
20. Members, who still hold share certificates in physical form are advised to dematerialize their 

shareholding to avail of the numerous benefits of dematerialization, which include easy liquidity, 
ease of trading  and transfer, savings in stamp duty and elimination of  

                  any possibility of loss of documents and bad deliveries. 
 

21. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting 
but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM. 

 
22. Members / Proxies are requested to bring the copies of annual reports to the meeting. 

 
23. Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 36 of Securities and Exchange Board  of  India  (Listing  

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI (LODR) Regulations")  and  
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, a brief note  on  the 
background and the functional expertise of the Directors of the Company seeking re-appointment 
along with the details of other Directorships, memberships / chairmanships of Board Committees, 
shareholding and relationships amongst directors inter-se is set out in the Brief Resume appended 
to this Notice. 

 
24. Voting through electronic means: 

 
In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter called “the Rules” for the 
purpose of this section of the Notice) and Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulation, 2015,the 
Company is providing facility to exercise votes on the items of business given in the Notice through 
electronic voting system, to members holding shares as on 21st September,2019 (End of Day) being 
the Cut-off date (Record date for the purpose of Rule 20 (4) (vii) of the Rules) fixed for determining 
voting rights of members, entitled to participate in the remote e- voting process, through the e-voting 

mailto:prafuls@adroitcorporate.com
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platform provided by M/s. Adroit Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. Person who is not a member as on the 
cut-off date should treat this Notice for information purpose only. 
 

A. The instructions for shareholder voting electronically are as under: 
 

(i) The voting period begins on Wednesday, 25th September, 2019 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Friday, 
27h September, 2019 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 
21stSeptember, 2019 (end of the day) may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall 
be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on resolution is cast by the member, the 
member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 
 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 
meeting venue. 
 

(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

(iv) Click on Shareholders. 
 

(v) Now Enter your User ID 
 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 
c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

 
(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 
(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on 

an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used. 
 

(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 
 
 

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN • Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 
Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical 
shareholders) 

• Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two 
letters of their name and the 8 digits of the sequence number in the PAN 
field. 

• In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable 
number of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the 
name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with 
sequence number 1 then enter RA00000001 in the PAN field. 

DOB Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the 
company records for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy 
format. 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 

• Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in 
order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company 
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details 
field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

(i) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
 

(ii) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company  selection screen. 
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein 
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note 
that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other 
company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company  opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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(iii) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(iv) Click on the EVSN for the relevant “HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED” on which you choose to 
vote. 
 

(v) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 
 

(vi) Click on the “HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED” if you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details. 
 

(vii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 
 

(viii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

(ix) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting 
page. 
 

(x) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xi) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 
 

 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required 
to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed 
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 
password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer 
to verify the same. 
 

(xii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. You can also send your queries/ grievances 
relating to e-voting at:- Name : Mr Rakesh Dalvi, Deputy Manager, Address : Phiroze Jeejeebhoy 
Towers, 16th Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400001. Email Id/Phone Number(s): 
rakeshd@cdslindia.com / 022 22728588, Toll free no: 18002005533. 
 
 

B. For members who receive the notice of annual general meeting in physical form: 
 

i.  Members holding shares either in demat or physical mode who are in receipt of Notice in physical 
form, may cast their votes using the Ballot Form. Please refer instructions under heading C below 
for more details. 

ii.  Members may alternatively opt for e-voting, for which the USER ID & initial password is provided at 
the bottom of the Ballot Form. Please follow steps from Sl. No. (i) to (xx) under heading ‘A’ above to 
vote through e-voting platform. 

 
C. Voting facility at annual general meeting: 

 
i. In addition to the remote e-voting facility as described above, the Company shall make a voting 

facility available at the venue of the annual general meeting either through electronic voting system 
or polling paper and members attending the meeting who have not already cast their votes by remote 
e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:rakeshd@cdslindia.com
mailto:rakeshd@cdslindia.com
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ii. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may attend the meeting, 
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 

D. General instructions: 
 

i.  The Company has appointed Ms. Monika Thanvi & Associates, a Practising Company Secretary (ACS 
No.31494, COP No. 11567] as the Scrutinizer to the e-voting process, in a fair and transparent 
manner. 
 

ii. The scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, first count 
the votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unlock the votes through e-voting in the presence of at least 
two (2) witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than three (3) days 
from the conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour 
or against, if any, to the Chairman of the Company, who shall countersign the same 
 

iii. In the event of a poll, please note that the members who have exercised their right to vote by 
electronic means/ through ballot form as above shall not be eligible to vote by way of poll at the 
meeting. The poll process shall be conducted and report thereon will be prepared in accordance with 
section 109 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules. In such an event, votes cast 
under Poll taken together with the votes cast through e-voting and using ballot form shall be counted 
for the purpose of passing of resolution(s). 
 

iv. The scrutinizer shall submit his report to the Chairman, who shall declare the result of the voting. 
The results declared along with the scrutinizer’s report shall be placed on the Company’s website 
www.hitkitglobal.com and on the website of www.evotingindia.com and shall also be communicated 
to the stock exchanges. The resolution shall be deemed to be passed at the annual general meeting 
of the Company, scheduled to be held on Saturday, 28th September, 2019.

http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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Explanatory Statement 

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013) 
 

ITEM NO. 2: 

 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors 
of the Company in its meeting held on 13th November,2018 had appointed Mrs. Premlata Purohit (DIN: 
07846020), as an Additional Director (Independent) of the Company to hold office for a period of five 
consecutive years, not liable to retire by rotation, subject to consent by  the Members of the Company 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). 
 
 
As an Additional Director, Mrs. Premlata Purohit (DIN: 07846020), holds office till the date of the AGM 
and is eligible for being appointed as an Independent Director. The Company has received a declaration 
from Mrs. Premlata Purohit (DIN: 07846020), confirming that she meets the criteria of independence 
as prescribed under the Act and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). Mrs. Premlata Purohit (DIN: 
07846020), is also not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the 
Act and has given her consent to act as a Director of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. 
Premlata Purohit (DIN: 07846020), fulfills the conditions for her appointment as an Independent 
Director as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations and she is independent of the management. 
 
Pursuant to provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General 
Meetings issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India, relevant particulars of Directors seeking 
re-appointment at this AGM are given here below: 
 

Particulars Details 

Name Mrs. Premlata Purohit  

DIN    07846020 

Date of Birth / Age 15/08/1985/ 34 

Designation Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

Experience in functional area Direct Taxation & Accounting & 
Assessment Proceeding. Her 
acumen spans across the areas of 
internal Audits, Tax Audits, Vat 
Audit, Representation Services and 
designing of Standard Operating 
Procedures. She also possesses a 
deep understanding of complexities 
of Accounting Issues and Audit 
Process with a penchant for 
ensuring time delivery.   

Qualification Chartered Accountant  

Terms and Condition of Appointment & re-
appointment along with Remuneration 
sought to be paid and last drawn 
Remuneration 

As per Terms & Condition set out 
in Appointment Letter 

Directorship in other Companies (Public 
Limited Companies) 

 
1. Taparia Tools Limited 
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None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 2 of the 
Notice. 

 

ITEM NO. 3: 
 
Mr. Arvind Bansilal Sharma (DIN: 03580605) was appointed as Independent Directors of the 
Company by the members at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th 
September,2014 for a period of five consecutive years up to the conclusion of 31st  Annual 
General Meeting of the Company to be held in calendar year 2019. 
 
As per Section 149 (10) of the Act, an Independent Director shall hold office for a term of up to 
five consecutive years on the Board of a Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on 
passing of a special resolution by the Company for another term of up to five consecutive years 
on the Board of the Company. 
 
Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and in terms of the 
provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and any other applicable provisions 
of the Act and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure                  Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, Mr. Arvind Bansilal Sharma (DIN: 03580605), being eligible for re-appointment as 
Independent Director and offering himself for reappointment, are proposed to be re-appointed 
as Independent Director for second term of five consecutive years up to the conclusion of 36th 
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in calendar year 2024. 
 
The Company has received declaration from them stating that they meet the criteria of 
Independence as prescribed under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Regulation16(1) (b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. They have also given their consent to continue to act as Directors of the 
Company, if so appointed by the members. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Arvind Bansilal 
Sharma (DIN: 03580605) fulfills the conditions specified under Section 149 (6) of the Act, the 
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for their re-
appointment as an Independent Director of the Company and is independent of the 
management. 

 
The Board considers that his continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company 
and it is desirable to continue to avail services of an Independent Director. Accordingly, the 
Board recommends passing of the Special Resolution in relation to re-appointment of Mr. Arvind 
Bansilal Sharma (DIN: 03580605) as Independent Director for another term of five consecutive 
years up to the conclusion of 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in calendar 
year 2024, for the approval of the members of the Company. 
 

Membership of Committees of other 

PublicCompanies(AuditCommittee /Nomination 

Remuneration Committee/Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee) 

 
NIL 

No. of Shares held in the company 
(Shareholding) 

NIL 

Date of Original Appointment on the Board   13.11.2018 

No. of board meetings attended during 
Financial Year 2018-19 

3 

Remuneration sought to be paid NIL 

Remuneration last paid Not Applicable 

Relationship with other Director, Manager 
& KMP 

No relationship with other 
Directors or KMP of the Company 
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None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is in any way, 
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the 
Notice. Pursuant to provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 and Secretarial Standards on 
General Meetings issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India, relevant particulars of 
Directors seeking re-appointment at this AGM are given here below: 
 

DIN 03580605 

PAN CYIPS4924F 
Nationality Indian 

DOB 26.11.1949 

Date of Original Appointment 30.09.2014 

Re-appointment Conclusion of 36th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be 
held in calendar year 2024 

Designation  
 

Independent Director / Non- 
Executive Director 

Experience / Expertise 32 years of experience in office 
administrative. 

Educational Qualifications B.COM 

Companies in which He holds 
Directorship 

NIL 

Shareholding as on 31st March, 2019 NIL 
Relationship with other Directors and 
KMPs 

No relationship with other 
Directors or KMP of the Company 

No. of board meetings attended 
during Financial Year 2018-19 

He was present in all Meetings of 
the Board held in Year 2018-19 

Remuneration sought to be paid NIL 

Remuneration last paid NIL 

 
 

By Order of the Board 
 For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 

                                                                                                                       sd/-  
Kamal Agrawal 

Managing Director 
Registered Office: 
55, Tirupati Plaza, 1st Floor,  
Tirupati Shopping Centre Premises  
Co-Op. Society Ltd., S.V. Road,  
Santacruz (W), Mumbai-400054. 
 

 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: August 13, 2019. 
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Directors Report 
To The Members 
Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited, 

 
Yours Company’s Directors are pleased to present 31st Annual Report of the Company, along with 
Audited Accounts, for the financial year ended March 31st, 2019. 
 

1. Financial Performance 
 

a) The salient features of the Company’s financial performance for the year under review are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

b) Operations & Performance of the Company 
 
During the year under the review, the Company has recorded gross revenue of Rs. 31.64 lakhs as 
against Rs. 19.94 lakhs in the previous year. After offsetting the expenses the company made a profit 
after tax of Rs.0.06 against Loss of Rs. 4.49 lakhs in the previous year. 
 
The Earning per Share (EPS) for the year was Rs. (0.00) as against Rs. 0.00 for previous year. 
 

c) Deposits: 

 
The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of 
Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) 
Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details relating 
to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the details of deposits which are not in compliance 
with the Chapter V of the Act is not applicable. 
 

 d) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:  

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies 
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time (including any 
amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Loans, guarantees and 
investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the Notes to 
Accounts of the Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report. 

 

e) Related Party Transactions: 

 
Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 
188 in theform AOC-2: 

 
Your Company has historically adopted the practice of undertaking related party transactions only 
in the ordinary and normal course of business and at arm’s length as part of its philosophy of 
adhering to highest ethical standards, transparency and accountability. In line with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board has approved a policy on related 
party transactions. The policy on RPTs as approved by Board is uploaded on the Company’ s 
websitehttps://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Related%20Party.pdf 
 
In view of above, All Related Party Transactions (RPTs) which were entered into during the Financial 

Particulars (Rs. In Lakhs) 

31.03.2019 31.03.2018 

Gross Revenue 31.64 19.94 

Operating Profit before Interest, Depreciation 
and Amortization and Tax 

0.25 (4.28) 

Interest - - 
Depreciation 0.18 0.15 

Profit before tax (PBT) 0.06 (4.43) 

Provision for Taxation - (0.07) 

Profit after tax (PAT) 0.06 (4.49) 

https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Related%20Party.pdf
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Year 2018-19 were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business and did not 
attract provisions of section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and were also not material RPTs under regulation 23 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, 2015. During the year 2018-19, as required under section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, all RPTs were 
placed before the Audit Committee for approval. 
 
A statement showing the disclosure of transactions with related parties including the transaction 
if any with any person or entity belonging to the promoter / promoter group which hold(s) 10% or 
more shareholding in the listed entity as required under Accounting Standard 18 is set out 
separately in Notes to accounts of Financial Statements annexed to this Annual Report. 
There were no material transactions entered into with related parties, during the period under 
review, which may have had any potential conflict with the interests of the Company. Accordingly, 
the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134 (3) (h) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2is not applicable. 
 

4. Dividend 
 
In order to conserve resources for future growth, your Directors do not recommend any dividend 
for the year 2018-19 
 

5. Transfer to Reserves 

 
 The Board of Directors has not appropriated and transferred any amount to any Reserve and has 

decided to retain the entire amount in profit and Loss account. 
 

6. Unpaid Dividend & IEPF: 

 
The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education & Protection Fund 
(IEPF) and does not have unclaimed dividend which remains to be transferred to Investor 
Education & Protection Fund (IEPF). 

 
7. Changes in Share Capital 

 
During the year, Company has not made any allotment of Equity or preference Shares. 

 

8. Disclosure Relating To Equity Shares with Differential Rights 

 
The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential rights during the year under 
review and hence no information as per provisions of Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital 
and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 
9. Disclosure Relating To Sweat Equity Shares 

 
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no 
information as per provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 
2014 is furnished. 

 

10. Disclosures In Respect Of Voting Rights Not Directly Exercised By Employees 
 

There are no shares held by trustees for the benefit of employees and hence no disclosure under 
Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has been furnished. 

 
11. Disclosure Under Section 67 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013: 
 

During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect 
of shares purchased directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act 
read with Rule 16 (4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
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12. Report on performance of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies: 

 
a. Subsidiaries: 

 
The Company has no Holding or Subsidiary Or Associates Company as on 31st March, 2019. 
 
b. Joint Venture: 

 
The Company has a Joint Venture (A.O.P.) to be known in the name of 'ENGINEERS INDIA 
ASSOCIATES' for the construction and development of resort project near Lonavala, Dist. 
Pune. 
 
Statement containing salient features of financial statements of Joint Venture pursuant to 
section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report in the prescribed Form AOC -1, as “Annexure 2”. 

 
 

13. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls 

 
Internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements were adequate and 
operating effectively 

 
The details pertaining to adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the 
Financial Statements pursuant to Rule 8 (5) (viii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 
are included in Management Discussion & Analysis, which forms part of this report. 
 
 

14. Matters Related To Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  
 

a. Board of Directors 
 

➢ During the year 2018-19, Board of Directors met Six Times viz. on 25th May, 2018; 
13th August, 2018; 13th November, 2018; 21st November, 2018; 14th February, 2019; 
30th March, 2019. The intervening gap between any two Meetings was within the 
period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015. 

 
➢ Mrs. Premlata Purohit and Mr. Gopal Vyas has been appointed as the additional 

Directors with effect from 13th November, 2019. The appointment is for a period of 5 
years subject to approval of Shareholders, which is being included in the notice of the 
Annual General Meeting. 

 
 

➢ Mr. Amit Khandelwal, an Independent Director of the Company on account of his 
professional commitments has tendered his resignation with effect from 30th March, 
2019. 

 
The Board places on record its appreciation for the invaluable services rendered by    
Mr Amit Khandelwal to the Board and Company during his tenure as member of the 
Board/Committees of the Board 

 
➢ Mr. Arvind Bansilal Sharma (DIN: 03580605) was appointed as Independent 

Directors of the Company by the members at the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 30th  September,2014 for a period of five consecutive years up 
to the conclusion of 31st  Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 
calendar year 2019. He will be Re- appointed in upcoming 36th AGM for second 
term of 5 Years. Necessary Resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Arvind Bansilal 
sharma (DIN: 03580605), as an Independent Director of the Company is included 
in the Notice of Annual General Meeting for seeking approval of members. 
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The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company 
confirming that they meet with the criteria of Independence as prescribed both under the Act and 
SEBI (LODR), 2015 and there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their 
status as Independent Directors during the year. 
 
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, 
performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into 
account the views of executive director. The same was discussed in the Board meeting held 
subsequently to the meeting of the independent directors, at which the performance of the Board, 
its Committees and individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of independent 
directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the independent director being evaluated. 
 
During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees for attending meetings of 
Board/Committee of the Company.  
 
Independent Directors are familiarized with their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company 
through induction programmes at the time of their appointment as Directors and through 
presentations made to them from time to time. The details of familiarization programmes conducted 
have been hosted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.hitkitglobal.com 

 
 

b. Key Managerial Personnel  

 
i. Appointment 

 
➢ On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mrs. Ishita Rushabh 

Sanghavi as a Company Secretary (KMP) of the Company with effect from 21st November, 2018 
pursuant to Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 6 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 
➢ On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Mr. Jeetendra P Chanda as 

a Chief Financial Officer (KMP) of the Company with effect from 30th March, 2019 pursuant to 
Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 6 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

 

ii. Resignation 
 

➢ During the year, Ms. Kirti Airen tendered her resignation on 21st June, 2018 from the post of 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company. 

 
➢ During the year, Mr. Rajesh Mavani, tendered his resignation on 31st January 2019 from the post 

of Chief Financial   Officer of the Company. 
 

15. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company  
 

Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which 
could affect the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the 
financial year of the Company and date of this report. 

 

16. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 

Pursuant to Section 134(3) (C) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors confirm that - 
 

a. in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, the  
applicable  accounting  standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures; 

 
b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a  true  and fair view of the 

http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
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state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2019 and of the profit and loss of the company for 
that period 
 

c. the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
 

d. the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
 

e. the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 
 

f. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
 

17. Audit Committee  

 
The Audit Committee of the Board pursuant to Section 177(2) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 
consist of Three Directors and all are Independent Directors and constitutes majority. 
 

18. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for 
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and recommend to the 
Board of a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees has been attached as “Annexure 4” to this report  

 

19. Presentation of Financial Results 

 
The financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 st March, 2019 have been disclosed as 
per Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

20. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo 

 
As your company is not engaged in manufacturing activities, the reporting requirement on these 
matters is not applicable and Foreign exchange earning & outgo during the year is NIL 

 

21. Secretarial Standard of ICSI 
 

Pursuant to the approval given on 10 April 2015 by the Central Government to the Secretarial 
Standards specified bythe Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the Secretarial Standards on 
Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1)and General Meetings (SS-2) came into effect from 1 July 
2015. The Company is in compliance with the same. 

 

22. Risk Management Policy: 

 
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to 
key business objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically 
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These are discussed at the meetings 
of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 
The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the  
size and complexity of its operations. These are routinely tested and certified by Statutory as well 
as Internal Auditors. 

 

23. Corporate Social Responsibility: 
 

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it does 
not fall within purview of Section 135(1) of the  Companies Act, 2013 and hence it is not required 
to formulate policy on corporate social responsibility. 
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24.  Board Evaluation 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR), 2015, the Board has 
carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually, 
as well as, the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committees. 

 
The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking feedback from all the 
Directors on the basis of the parameters/criteria, such as, degree of fulfillment of key responsibility 
by the Board, Board Structures and Composition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities 
to the Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, Board culture 
and dynamics and quality of relationship between the Board and the Management. 

 
The performance of the committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility and Stakeholders Relationship Committee was 
evaluated by the Board after seeking feedback from Committee members on the basis of 
parameters/criteria such as degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, adequacy of committee 
composition, effectiveness of meetings, committee dynamics and, quality of relationship of the 
committee with the Board and the Management. 

 
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the 
individual Directors on the basis of self- assessment questionnaire and feedback/inputs from other 
Directors (without the concerned director being present). 

 
In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, the performance of Non-Independent Directors of 
the Board as a whole and the performance of the Chairman were evaluated. 
 
 
 

25. Policies of the Company 

 
Your Company has posted the following documents on its website www.hitkitglobal.com. 
 
a) Code of Conduct and Ethics 
b) Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) 
c) Related Party Transaction Policy 
d) Familiarisation Programme for the benefit of the Independent Directors 
e) Nomination and Remuneration Policy 
f) Policy for determining materiality of events 
g) Policy for determining “material subsidiary” of the company. 

 
 

26.  Significant and Material Orders Passed by Regulators or Courts or Tribunals: 
 

The company received the order from SEBI dated May 21,2018 confirming the following 
directions:  

 
a) The trading in securities of HKGSL shall be reverted to the status as it stood prior to issuance 

of letter dated August 7, 2017 by SEBI. 
b) Stock Exchange shall appoint an independent auditor to conduct forensic audit of the financials 

of HKGSL to establish their genuineness. 
c) The limitation on the transfer of shares held by the Promoters and Directors as mentioned in 

para 1(b) of SEBI’s letter dated August 07, 2017 is removed. 
d) The other actions envisaged in SEBI’s letter dated August 07, 2017 in para 1 (d) as may be 

applicable, and the consequential action taken by Stock Exchanges shall continue to have effect 
against HKGSL. 

 
During the year forensic auditor were appointed by the SEBI and all the required documents were 
submitted by the company. No further order received by the company from SEBI till date  

 
During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the 
regulators or courts or tribunals, which may impact the going concern status of the Company and 
its operations in future. 

http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
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27.   Auditors of the Company  
 

a. Statutory Auditor 

 
i. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, at 30th Annual 

General Meeting held on 29th September, 2018 the Members approved appointed M/s. B.M. 
Gattani & Co., Chartered Accountants, (FRN:-113536W) as  Statutory Auditors  of the 
Company to hold office until the conclusion of the 35th Annual General Meeting,  

 
ii. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the statutory  auditors 

in their audit reports on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2019. 
 

b. Secretarial Auditor 

 
i. Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made 

thereunder the Company has appointed, M/s. Monika Thanvi & Associates (membership 
number: 31494) Practicing Company Secretary, to undertake the secretarial audit of the 
Company. Secretarial Audit Report for the year 2018-19 given by Mrs. Monika Thanvi in 

the prescribed form MR-3 as “ANNEXURE-1”to this Report.  
 

ii. The Management reply for the observation raised by the Secretarial Auditor is as under: 
 

Observation Reply 
The Composition of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee was not as per Section 
178 of Companies Act, 2019 till September 
Quarter. However, Company has complied with 
the said provisions by reconstituting the same 
with effect from the conclusion of board meeting 
dated 13.11.2018. The Company is exempted 
from Regulation 19 of  (Listing Obligation and 
disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
 

Company was finding for the suitable candidate and 
thereafter appointed Mr. Gopal Vyas and Mrs. Premlata 
Purohit w.e.f.13.11.2018 and complied with same. 
Your Company is exempted from Regulation 17 to 
Regulation 27 of LODR being its paidup Share Capital 
less then 10 crore and Net worth less then 25 crore as 
per clause 2 of Regulation 15 of LODR. 

The Company has appointed woman director 
w.e.f. 13.11.2018 on the board in compliance 
with SEBI LODR Regulation 17 and section 149 
read with Rule 3 of Companies (appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 of 
Companies act, 2013. 

 

Company was unable to find suitable candidate for the 
same and thereafter appointed Mrs. Premlata purohit 
and complied with the same as per Companies Act, 2013. 
Your Company is exempted from Regulation 17 to 
Regulation 27 of LODR being its paid up Share Capital 
less then 10 crore and Net worth less then 25 crore as 
per clause 2 of Regulation 15 of LODR.  

The Company has not complied with the 

provisions of Section 117(3) of Companies   

Amendment Act, 2017 with regard to delay in 

filing of MGT 14 for the resolutions passed under 

section 179(3) of the act  in Board Meeting dated 

25.5.2018 and 13.08.2018. 

Company has inadvertently missed the filing of the 
mentioned E-forms with ROC and thereafter filed the 
same at later date. 

Mr. Amit Khandelwal , Non executive Chairman 

and Independent Director of the Company has 

not complied with  Rule 12A of 

Companies(Appointment and Qualification of 

Directors) Amendment Rules, 2018 and there 

after resigned we.f. 30.3.2019. 

Due to his pre occupancy with other assignments, Mr. 
Amit Khandelwal was intending to resign the Company 
and thereafter resigned w.e.f.30.3.2019. 

 

Lease and Licence agreement  being provided by 

the Company with M/s Aambey Valley 

Mountains Private Limited regarding Lease of 

Monsoon Lake and Water sports dated 27th 

October, 2018 was not registered and since 

operations of Monsoon Lake have not 

commenced as on 31.3.2109 the Company will 

execute the final Registered Lease Deed by 

paying appropriate stamp duty for the same, on 

commencement of operations of the Monsoon 

Lake in the FY 2019-20 and shall be registered 

with Sub Registrar of Assurances in terms of the 

Company will execute the final Registered Lease Deed by 
paying appropriate stamp duty for the same, on 
commencement of operations of the Monsoon Lake in the 
FY 2019-20. 
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Registration Act, 1908 and Transfer of Property 

act, 1882. 

 
 

c.  Internal Auditor 
 

Pursuant to Section 138 of Companies Act, 2019 and on the recommendation of Audit Committee, 
the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 14th August, 2018 appointed M/s. Motilal & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditor of the Company for conducting internal 
audit and lay down report in meeting of Audit Committee and Board of Directors at such interval 
as committee or Board deems fit as the case may be. 

 

28.     Details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under section 143 (12): 

 
During the year under review, there were no incidents of frauds reported by the auditors to the 
Audit Committee or the Board under section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
29.     Extract of Annual Return 

 
The Extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to Section 92( 3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is attached as 
ANNEXURE-5 to this Report. 

 

30. Corporate Governance Report 
 

Corporate Governance Report together with a certificate from Statutory Auditors Regarding 
Compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as per the requirement of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 is annexed to the report on Corporate Governance. 

 
The Board of Directors support the concept of Corporate Governance and having regard to 
transparency, accountability and rationale behind the decisions have made proper disclosures 
separately under the heading “Corporate Governance”. 

 

31. Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace: 

 
The Company has in place the “Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace” in 
line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year under review, no complaints were received 
by the Committee for Redressal. 

 

32. Management’s Discussion and Analysis Statement 

 
The Management Discussion and Analysis for the year 2018-19, as required under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015, are given in separate section forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

33. Statutory Disclosures 
 

Details as required under the provisions of section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
is given as an Annexure to this Report. 

 

34. Green Initiatives 
 

In commitment to keep in line with the Green Initiative and going beyond it to create new green 
initiatives, electronic copy of the notice of 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company are sent to 
all members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s). 
For members who have not registered their email addresses physical copies are sent through the 
permitted mode. 

   

35. Cautionary Statement 
 

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the 
Company’s objectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward-looking within the meaning of 



Hit Kit Global Solutions Ltd.                                                             Annual Report 2018-19 

  

19  

applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those 
expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations 
include global and domestic demand and supply, input costs, availability, changes in government 
regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country and other factors such as 
litigation and industrial relations. 
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The Board of directors places on record its sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts  put in by 
all employees, their commitment and contribution at all levels, in most difficult and challenging 
environment during the year. Your Directors would like to record their sincere appreciation for the 
support and co-operation that your Company received from business associate and other strategic 
partners of the company. 
 
Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation and thanks for the valuable co-
operation and support received from  the Registrar of  Companies,  Maharashtra, Regional Director, 
Western Region, Ministry of Company Affairs, Stakeholders, Company’s bankers, financial 
institutions, Regulatory Authorities, Stock Exchanges and shareholders at large and look forward 
to the same  in greater measure  in the coming year. 

                               
   On behalf of the Board 

For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Place: Mumbai, 
Date: August 13, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  sd/- sd/- 
    Kamal Agrawal Premlata Purohit 

Managing Director Non Executive Chairman 
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Annexure 1 

FORM NO. MR – 3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2019 

 
(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
 

To,  
The Members, 
M/S. HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LTD. 
55, Tirupati Plaza, 1st Floor, S V Road, Santacruz (W), 
Tirupati Shopping Centre Premises Co-Op Soc. Ltd., 
Mumbai: 400054 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited (hereinafter called “the company”). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during 
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions of the 
applicable acts listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism 
in place to the extent, in the manner  and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :  
 
1.    I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the 

Company, for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:  
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 

2. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(“SEBI Act”): 

 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations,2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)  

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock 

Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 

Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

(Not applicable to the company during the audit period) 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period) and  

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable 

to the Company during the audit period) 
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The management has identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable to the Company: 

 

1. Income Tax Act, 1961. 

2. The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976. 

3. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

4. The Bombay Shops & Establishment Act, 1948. 

5. The Professional Tax Act, 1975. 

6. The Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881 

7. The Information Technology Act, 2000 

8. The Indian Contract Act, 1872 

9. The Sale of Goods Act, 1930. 

10. The Registration Act, 1908 

11. Transfer of Property act, 1882 

 

Apart from the general Laws, there were no specific Laws applicable to the Company. 

 

       I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

i. Secretarial Standards notified by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 
ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. 
 

 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following observations/Qualifications :- 
 

• The Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee was not as per Section 178 of Companies Act, 
2019 for June and September Quarter. However, Company has complied with the said provisions by 
reconstituting the same with effect from the conclusion of board meeting dated 13.11.2018. The Company is 
exempted from Regulation 19 of  (Listing Oblgation and disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 
• The Company has appointed woman director w.e.f. 13.11.2018 on the board in compliance with SEBI LODR 

Regulation 17 and section 149 read with Rule 3 of Companies (appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014 of Companies act, 2013. 

 

• The Company has not complied with the provisions of Section 117(3) of Companies   Amendment Act, 2017 

with regard to delay in filing of MGT 14 for the resolutions passed under section 179(3) of the act  in Board 

Meeting dated 25.5.2018 and 13.08.2018. 

• Mr. Amit Khandelwal ,Non executive Chairman and Independent Director of the Company has not 

complied with  Rule 12A of Companies(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Amendment Rules, 

2018 and there after resigned w.e.f. 30.3.2019 

• Lease and Licence agreement  being provided by the Company with M/s Aambey Valley Mountains Private 

Limited regarding Lease of Monsoon Lake and Water sports dated 27th October, 2018 was not registered and 

since operations of Monsoon Lake have not commenced as on 31.3.2109 the Company will execute the final 

Registered Lease Deed by paying appropriate stamp duty for the same, on commencement of operations of 

the Monsoon Lake in the FY 2019-20 and shall be registered with Sub Registrar of Assurances in terms of the 

Registration Act, 1908 and Transfer of Property act, 1882. 

• Securities & Exchange Board of India (herein referred to as “SEBI”) in the interest of investors, vide its letter 

dated August 7, 2017 took pre-emptive interim measures under section 11(1) of Securities & Exchange Board 

of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) in respect of certain listed companies and the Company received the Final 

Order From the SEBI dated 21.05.2018 directing BSE to conduct a Forensic Audit on the Company. Forensic 
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Auditors were appointed by SEBI and the Company has submitted necessary information required by 

Forensic Auditor on time. As on date, all the required documents were submitted on time by the Company. 

No further orders have been received by the Company in the said matter. 

I Further report that  

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 
Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director appointed w.e.f. 13th November, 2018. The 
Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.  

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and      detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the 
meeting. 
 
All decisions are carried out unanimously at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings  and recorded in the 
minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees of the Board, as the case may be. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 
 
I further report that during the year under report, the company has not undertaken event/action having a 
major bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
etc. referred to above. 
 

 
For Monika Thanvi& Associates 

Company Secretaries 
 
 
 
 

CS Monika Thanvi 
Place: Mumbai                                        Proprietor 
Date: 12th August, 2019                                                                             M. No. ACS 31494 
                                                                                                                                                                                  C. P. No. 11567 
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ANNEXURE 
To,  
The Members, 

M/S. HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LTD. 
55, Tirupati Plaza, 1st Floor, S V Road, Santacruz (W), 
Tirupati Shopping Centre Premises Co-Op Soc. Ltd., 
Mumbai: 400054 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of the company. Our responsibility is 

to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 
company. 
 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events, etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test 
basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

For Monika Thanvi& Associates 
Company Secretaries 

 
 

                                                                                                               CS Monika Thanvi 
Place: Mumbai          Proprietor 
Date: 12th August, 2019                                   M. No. ACS 31494 
                                                                                                                                       C. P. No. 11567 
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Annexure to the Directors Report 

 
Annexure 2 

Form AOC 1 
 
(          (Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014) 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

companies/joint ventures 
 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries- 
 
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 
 

SR. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

1. No Subsidiary N.A 

 
Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 
 
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and 
Joint Ventures 
 
Name of Joint Venture which is yet to commence operations:  
 

Name of Joint Venture Engineers India Associates (A.O.P) 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2019 (Un-audited) 

  

2. Shares of Joint Venture held by the company 
on the year end 

It is an A.O.P thus Not Applicable 

No. Not Applicable 

Amount of Investment in Joint Venture Rs. 3.92 cr. 

Extend of Holding% 40% 

3. Description of how there is significant influence Having 40% stake in Joint Venture 

4. Reason why the joint venture is not consolidated As Company exercises Joint 
Control as per Ind AS 111 in Joint 
Venture. Joint Venture has not 
commenced its Operations. 

5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per 
latest audited Balance Sheet 

Rs. 3.92 cr. 

6. Profit/Loss for the year  

i. Considered in Consolidation NIL 

 
 
 

On behalf of the Board 
 For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: August 13, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

sd/- sd/- 
Kamal Agrawal Premlata Purohit 
Managing Director Non Executive Chairman 
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Annexure 3 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES  
 

 
The information required under section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules ,2014 are given below: 
 
a.The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of 
the Company for the financial year : 
 

Non Executive Director  
 

Ratio to Median Remuneration 

Not applicable as company has not paid any remuneration to any Director  

 
 

 Executive Director  
 

Ratio to Median Remuneration 

Not applicable as company has not paid any remuneration to any Director  
 

 
b. The percentage increase in remuneration of each director ,chief executive officer, chief financial 
officer, company secretary in the financial year : 
 

Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief 
Financial Officer, Company secretary  
 

Ratio to Median Remuneration 

Not applicable as company has not paid any remuneration to any Director  
 

 
c. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: NIL 
 
d. The number of permanent employees on the role of Company three (3) as on 31.03.2019. 
 
e. Justification of increase in managerial remuneration with that increase in remuneration of 
employees: There is a decrease in managerial remuneration 
 
f. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: 
 
I,Kamal Agawal , Director of the Company hereby affirm that all the employees including Key 
Managerial Personnel are paid remuneration as per the remuneration policy of the company and 
approved by the Board. 
 
The statement containing particulars of employees as required under section 197 (12) of the Act 
read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules ,2014: Not Applicable  
 

 
 

By Order of the Board 
 For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 

                                                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                                   sd/-  

Kamal Agrawal 
Managing Director 

 
 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: August 13, 2019. 
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Annexure 4 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. This policy on nomination 
and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management has 
been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC or the 
Committee) and  has been approved by the Board of Directors. 

 

Definitions: 
 

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person  for 
services rendered by him/her and includes perquisites as defined under the  Income -
tax Act, 1961; 

 
“Key Managerial Personnel” means: 

 

i)  Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager and in their absence, a 
Whole-Time Director; 

ii) Chief Financial Officer; 
iii) Company Secretary; and 
iv) such other officer as may be prescribed. 

 
“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the company who are members of 
its core management team excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would comprise 
all members of management, of rank equivalent to General Manager and above, 
including all functional heads. 

 

Objective: 
 

The objective of the policy is to ensure that; 
 

• the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, 
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the  company 
successfully; 

• relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmarks; and 

• remuneration to directors, key  managerial personnel and senior management 
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long -
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its 
goals. 

 

Role of the Committee: 

 
The role of the NRC will be the following: 

 

• To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a Director. 

• To formulate criteria for evaluation of Inde pendent Directors and the Board. 

• To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who  may  be  
appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in 
this policy. 

• To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance. 

• To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior 
Management. 

• To recommend to the Board policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 
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• To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size, Succession planning for 
replacing Key Executives and overseeing. 

• To carry out any other function as mandated by the  Board from time  to  time  and / or 
enforced by any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be 
applicable. 

• To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the 
performance of its duties. 

 
APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND 
SENIOR MANAGEMENT 

 
a)  The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, exper tise an 

experience of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or  at  Senior Management  level 
and recommend his / her appointment, as per Company’s Policy. 

b)  A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position 
he /she is considered for appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether 
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory 
for the position. 

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any  person as  Whole-  time 
Director who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person 
holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of 
shareholders by passing a special resolution. 

 

TERM / TENURE 
 

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 
 

The Company  shall appoint or re-appoint any person  as its Executive  Chairman,  Managing 
Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment 
shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

 
b) Independent Director: 

 
An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the  Board 
of the Company and will be eligible for re -appointment on passing of a special resolution by 
the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

 
No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto 
maximum of 5 years  each, but  such Independent Director shall  be eligible  for appointment 
after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director. 

 
Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed 
in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly. 

 
At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards 
on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies  as an 
Independent Director and three  listed  companies as  an  Independent Director in  case such 
person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may 
be prescribed under the Act. 

 

EVALUATION 
 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel yearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary. 
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REMOVAL 
 

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director,  KMP 
or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Companies 
Act, 2013, rules and regulations and the policy of the Company. 

 
RETIREMENT 

 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the 
discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel  in  the  same position/ 
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age,  for  the  benefit of the 
Company. 

 
POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS / KMP / SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL 

 
1) Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors: 

 

a)  The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director / Whole -time 
Directors, etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the  Companies  Act,  2013  and rules 
made there under or any other enactme nt for the time being in force and the approvals 
obtained from the Members of the Company. 

 
b)  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee  shall make  such  recommendations to  the 

Board of Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration t o Managing 
Director / Whole-time Directors. 

 
2) Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Directors: 

 

a) The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other 
remuneration as permissible under the provisions of Companies  Act,  20 13.  The amount 
of sitting fees shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 
b)  All the remuneration of the Non- Executive / Independent Directors (excluding 

remuneration for attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules made there under or any other enactment for the time being  in force. The amount of 
such remuneration shall be such as may be recommended by the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the 
case may be. 

 
c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to  get  Stock Options and  also  shall  not be 

eligible to participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company. 
 

d)  Any remuneration paid to Non- Executive / Independent Directors for  services  rendered 
which are of professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for 
the purposes of clause (b) above if the following conditions are  satisfied: 

 
i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and 
ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the director possesses the  requisite  qualification  for 

the practice of that profession. 
 

e)  The Compensation Committee of the Company, constituted for  the purpose of 
administering the Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall  determine  the stock 
options and other share based payments to be made to Directors (other than Indepdent 
Directors). 
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3) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management: 
 

a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall 
consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s Policy. 

 
b)  The Compensation Committee of the Company, constituted for the purpose  of 

administering the Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes,  shall  determine  
the stock options and other share based payments to be made to Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management. 

 

c) The Fixed pay may include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to 
Provident Fund, contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as  decided  
from  time  to time. 

 
d)  The Incentive pay may be decided based on the balance between performance of 

the Company and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management, to  be decided annually or at such intervals as may be considered 
appropriate. 

 

IMPLEMENTATION 
 

• The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism 
and manuals in supplement and for better implementation of this policy as 
considered appropriate. 

• The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 
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Annexure 5 

 

The Extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9: 

 
Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 
 

I. Registration and other Details 
 

CIN L70100MH1988PLC049929 

Registration Date 06th December, 1988 

Name of the Company Hit Kit Global Solutions Ltd. 

Category Company Limited by shares 

Sub-Category Indian Non-Government Company 

Address of the Registered Office 55, Tirupati Plaza, 1st Floor, Tirupati Shopping Centre 
Premises Co-Op. Society Ltd., S V Road, 
Santacruz (W), Mumbai 400 054 

Contact details Tel no. 91-22- 6561 4984, Fax : 91-22- 2600 2894 
E-mail address: info@hitkitglobal.com Website: 
www.hitkitglobal.com 

Whether Listed Company Yes, Listed on BSE Ltd 

Name, Address and
 Contact details of Registrar 
and Transfer 
Agent 

Adroit Corporate Service Pvt. Limited 
19, Jaferbhoy Industrial Estate, 1st Floor, Makwana 
Road, Marol Naka, Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 059. 

 
II. Principal Business Activities 

 
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company 

 

Sl. 

No. 

Name and Description of main products NIC Code of 

the 
Product 

% to total 

turnover of the 
Company 

1. Retail sale of fresh Vegetables 5220 100 

 

III. Particular of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies 
 

Sr No Name and Address CIN/GLN Holding/ 

Subsidiar 

y/ 
Associate 

% of 

Profit 

Sharing  

Applicabl 

e Section 

1. Engineers India 
Associates (AOP) 

Not Applicable  Associate  40 2(6) 

 
IV. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total 

Equity) 
 

i) Category-wise Share Holding 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

mailto:info@hitkitglobal.com
http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
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Category 

of 

sharehold
er s 

No. of shares held at the beginning of 

the year 

No. of shares held at the end of the 

year 

% 

Chan

ge 
durin

g the 

year 

Demat Physic

al 

Total % of 

total 
Share

s 

Demat Physica

l 

Total % of 

total 
Shares 

A. 
Promoters 

 

(1) Indian          

a) 
Individual
/H 
UF 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Central 
Govt 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) State 
Govt 
(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies 
Corp. 

44,14,184 - 44,14,184 11.93 44,14,184 - 44,14,184 11.93  

e) Banks / 
FI 

- - - - - - - -  

f) Any 
Other…. 

- - - - - - - -  

Sub-total 

(A) (1) 

44,14,184 - 44,14,184 11.93 44,14,184 - 44,14,184 11.93  

(2) 
Foreign 

         

a) NRIs - 
Individual
s 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Other – 
Individual
s 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Bodies 
Corp. 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) Banks / 
FI 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Any 
Other…. 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 

(A) (2): 

- - - - - - - - - 

Total 
sharehold
i ng 
of  
Promoter 
(A) 
=(A)(1)+(A)
(2) 

 
 
 

44,14,184 

 
 
 

- 

 
 
 

44,14,184 

 
 
 

11.93 

 
 
 

44,14,184 

 
 
 

- 

 
 
 

44,14,184 

 
 
 

11.93 

 
 

- 

B. Public 
Sharehold
ing 
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1. 

Institutio

ns 

         

a) Mutual 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / 
FI 

- - - - 2000 - 2000 0.01 0.01 

c) Central 
Govt 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) State 
Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) 
Insurance 
Companie
s 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 
(B)(1):- 

- - - - 2000 - 2000 0.01 0.01 

          

2. Non- 

Institutio
ns 

         

Bodies 
Corporate 

 

 
i) Indian 

 
77,16,684 

 
- 

 
77,16,684 

 
20.86 

 
72,58,910 

 

 
- 

 
72,58,910 

 

 
19.62 

 
-1.24 

ii) 
Overseas 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) 
Individual
s 

 

i) 
Individual 
shareholde
rs holding 
nominal 
share 
capital 
upto Rs. 1 
lakh 

 
 
155,26,135 

 

 
 
21,252 
 

 
 

155,47,387 

 
 
42.02 

 
 

154,96,049 
 

 
 
21,252 

 
 

155,17,301 
 

 
 
41.94 

 
 
-0.08 
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ii) 
Individual 
shareholde
rs holding 
nominal 
share 
capital in 
excess of 
Rs 1 
lakh 

 
 
90,94,648 

 
 
0 
  

 
 
90,94,648 

 
 
24.58 

 
 

95,24,938 
 

 
 
- 

 
 
95,24,938 

 
 
25.74 

 
 
1.16 

c) Others 
(specify) 

 

Clearing 
Member 

- - - - - - - - - 

Non 
Resident 
Indians 

2,26,917 - 2,26,917 0.61 2,82,617 - 2,82,617 0.76 0.15 

Sub-total 
(B)(2): 

3,25,65,564   21,252 3,25,85,816 88.07 3,25,62,564 21,252 3,25,83,816 88.06 0.01 

Total 
Public 
Shareholdi
ng 
(B)=(B)(1)+ 
(B)(2) 

 
3,25,65,564 

 
21,252 

 
3,25,85,816 

 
88.07 

 
3,25,64,564 

 
21,252 

 
3,25,85,816 

 
88.06 

 
0.01 

 
C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian 
for 
GDRs & 
ADRs 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

 
 
- 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

3,69,78,748 21,252 3,70,00,000 100.00 3,69,78,748 21,252 3,70,00,000 100.00 - 

 

(i) Shareholding of Promoters 

 

Sharehol
ders 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of 
the 

Year 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

% 
Change in 

share 

holding 
during the 

year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares 
of the 
company 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbere 
d 
to total 
shares 

No. of Shares % of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
company 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged / 
encumber 
ed 
to total 
shares 

WebnetInf
oways Ltd 

 
44,14,184 

 
11.93 

 
0 

 
44,14,184 

 
11.93 

 
0 

 
0.00 
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iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) 

 Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during the 
Year 

 No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

WebnetInfoways Ltd 44,14,184 11.93 44,14,184 11.93 

No Change During the year - - - - 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters 
Share holding during the year specifying 
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer /bonus/ 
sweat equity etc): 

 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year 44,14,184 11.93 44,14,184 11.93 

 

(ii) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 
GDRs and ADRs): 
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 Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year 

 No. of 
shares 

% of total 
shares of 
the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

1. Vora Construction Ltd     

At the beginning of the year 39,30,706 10.62 39,30,706 10.62 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   39,30,706 10.62 

2. Glimmer Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.     

At the beginning of the year 19,92,300 5.38 19,92,300 5.38 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   19,92,300 5.38 

3. Prakash Bhoorchand Shah     

At the beginning of the year 16,47,477 4.45 16,47,477 4.45 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   16,47,477 4.45 

4. Rahul Jagannath Joshi     

At the beginning of the year 11,08,992 3.00 11,08,992 3.00 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   11,08,992 3.00 

5. Santosh S Goenka     

At the beginning of the year 10,83,318 2.93 10,83,318 2.93 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   10,83,318 2.93 

6. Rahul Jagannath Joshi (HUF)     

At the beginning of the year 8,34,005 2.25 8,34,005 2.25 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   8,34,005 2.25 

7. Supriya Santosh Goenka     

At the beginning of the year 7,01,727 1.90 7,01,727 1.90 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 

 
 
No Change During the year 
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allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

At the End of the year   7,01,727 1.90 

8. Sunita Santosh Goenka     

At the beginning of the year 4,87,254 1.32 4,87,254 1.32 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding 
during   the   year   specifying   the   
reasons for 

 

 

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   4,87,254 1.32 

9. Harmesh Rahul Joshi     

At the beginning of the year 4,55,457 1.23 4,55,457 1.23 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   4,55,457 1.23 

10. New Market Advisory Limited     

At the beginning of the year 3,40,734 0.92 3,40,734 0.92 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year   3,40,734 0.92 
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
 

 Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative 
Shareholding during 
the Year 

 No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of 
total 
shares 
of the 
compa 
Ny 

Mr. Kamal Agrawal (MD)      

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for  increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 

 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year 0 0 0 0 

Mr. Arvind Sharma     

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for  increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year 0 0 0 0 

Mr. Amit Khandelwal1     

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for  increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 

 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year 0 0 0 0 

Mrs. Premlata Purohit2     

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for  increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 

 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year 0 0 0 0 

Mr. Gopal Vyas2     

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during   the   year   specifying   the   
reasons   for 
increase  /  decrease  (e.g.  allotment  /  
transfer 

 

 
No Change During the year 
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/bonus/ sweat equity etc):  

At the End of the year 0 0 0 0 

Mr. Rajesh Mavani (CFO)3     

At the beginning of the year 21,036 0.05 21,036 0.05 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for  increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year 21,036 0.05 21,036 0.05 

Mr. Jeetendra P Chanda (CFO)4     

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for  increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year     

Mr. Kirti Airen (Company Secretary)5     

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for  increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 

 
No Change During the year 

At the End of the year 0 0 0 0 

Mrs. Ishita Sanghavi (Company Secretary)6     

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share 
holding during the year specifying the 
reasons for  increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer 
/bonus/ sweat equity etc): 

 
                         No Change During the year 

At the End of the year 0 0 0 0 

1.Mr. Amit Khandelwal resigned w.e.f. 30th March 2019 
2. Mrs. Premlata Purohit & Mr. Gopal Vyas appointed w.e.f. 13th November, 2018 
3. Mr. Rajesh Mavani Resigned w.e.f. 31st January, 2019 
4. Mr. Jeetendra P Chanda appointed w.e.f. 30th March, 2019. 
5. Ms. Kirti Airen resigned w.e.f. 21st June, 2018 
6. Mrs. Ishita Sanghavi appointed w.e.f. 21st November, 2018. 
 

V. Indebtedness 
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

 Secured 
Loans 
excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposit 
s 

Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii) Interest accrued but not due 

- - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - - 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 
• Addition 
• Reduction 

- - - - 

Net Change - - - - 
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Indebtedness at the end of the financial 

year 
i) Principal Amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii)Interest accrued but not due 

- - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - - 
 

  VI.     Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 
 

Particulars of Remuneration Mr. Kamal Agrawal Total Amount 

Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 
 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 
 
(c)Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 
1961 

- 
 
 
- 
 
- 

- 
 
 
- 
 
- 

Stock Option - - 

Sweat Equity - - 

Commission 
- as % of profit 
- others 

 
- 

 
- 

Others - - 

Total (A) - - 

Ceiling as per the Act - - 

  
B. Remuneration to other directors: 

 
Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Name of Directors 

Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal 

Mr. Arvind 
Sharma 

Mrs. Premlata 
Purohit* 

  Mr. Gopal  
  Vyas*  

• Independent Directors     
• Fee for attending 

board / 
• committee meetings 

- - 8000 - 

• Commission - - - - 
• Others - - - - 

Total (1) - - - - 

Other Non-Executive 
Directors 

    

• Fee for attending 
board / 

committee meetings 

- - - - 

• Commission - - - - 
• Others - - - - 

Total (2) - - - - 

Total (B)=(1+2) - - - - 

Total Managerial 
Remuneration 

- - - - 

Overall Ceiling as per 
the 
Act 

- - - - 
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*Mrs. Premlata Purohit & Mr. Gopal Vyas appointed w.e.f 13th November, 2018. 

 
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD / Manager / WTD 

 
 
Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel 
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer  Total Amount 

(Rs.) Ms. Kirti 
Airen1 

Mrs. Ishita 
Sanghavi2  

Mr. Rajesh 
Mavani3 

Mr. Jeetendra 
Chanda4 
 

Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

 
59,600 

 
 

 
1,25,000 

  
1,84,600 

 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

  
- 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - -  - 

Stock Option - - -  - 
Sweat Equity - - -  - 
Commission 
- as % of profit 
- others 

- - -  - 

Others - - -  - 
Total -     
 
1. Ms. Kirti Airen resigned w.e.f. 21st June, 2018 
2. Mrs. Ishita Sanghavi appointed w.e.f. 21st November, 2018. 
3. Mr. Rajesh Mavani Resigned w.e.f. 31st January, 2019 
4. Mr. Jeetendra P Chanda appointed w.e.f. 30th March, 2019. 
 
VII. Penalties / Punishment/ Compounding of Offences: 
 
During the year there were no penalties, punishment, compounding charges paid by the  
Company . 

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

DetailsofPenalty/ 
Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed 

Authority 
[RD/NCLT/ 
Court] 

Appeal made, if any 
(give details) 

A. Company  

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

B. Directors  

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

C. Other Officers in Default 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report  
 

Industry Structure and Development 

  
Retail is a process of selling goods and services to customers through multiple channel of distribution. 
Retail stores may be small or big but they mostly operate in the same line as “purchasing to sale”. 
Retail form of business is as old as civilization. E-commerce is consistently taking up a larger 
proportion of consumer time and spending. 
 
The face of retail has changed. The advent of technology in recent period being the primary reason for 
it. Today,retailing means going into shopping centers, going online and going mobile. In all these, small 
retailers miss out somewhere. It needs to revive not just survive. Better quality products, fair price and 
friendly after-sale services are the basic areas in which the business has to concentrate to a remarkable 
extent. Experience, knowhow of the business and the understanding of the requirement by the 
customers help us to create business volumes and maintain sustainability. 
 
Economic outlook 
 
Traditional retailing has had a tough time lately. Footfalls in retail shops even in biggest markets has 
been declining. Chains that were faltering even before online’s ascent are now in even deeper trouble. 
Looking at the economic growth of the Tourism Industry, the company has scaled down the business 
operations of vegetable retailing, thereby consolidating the operations and are diversifying the Business 
activities into the Resort development by deploying the available funds into the Resort Project of the 
Company. 
 

 

Financial Performance 
 
The Financial Statements of the Company and its are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The Notes to Financial Statements are disclosed and forms part of the 
Financial Statements. 
 

Key Financial performance, Operational Information and Ratio Analysis 
 

Key- Developments in 2018-19  
 
During the year company is engaged into development of resort project and is developing Forest Resort 
near Lonavala comprising of Forest chalets and cottages at the upcoming Monsoon Lake, catering to 
tourist from Mumbai and Pune. The company has made  investment of Rs.392.40 lakhs as at 31 March 
2019 for construction of the Resort Project under the Joint Venture where the Company has 40% 
stake. The Company is awaiting development permission and Land Use approval from government 
authorities and forest department for further development of the Resort Project. 
 
During the year the Company has entered into an Lease Agreement for lease of Monsoon Lake and 
Water Sports for its forthcoming Resort Project at Lonavala on a yearly rental basis renewable after 10 
years and will continue on renewal basis for further 20 years. Lessor has to pay 10% interest on deposit 
amount till the completion of the Monsoon Lake up to 30th June, 2019 and if the Monsoon Lake and 
Water Sport Facility will not be ready use than the interest on the deposit will be payable at the rate 
of 20% per annum for the delayed period. 
 

Opportunities and threats 
 
Our success as an organization depends on our ability to identify opportunities and leverage them 
while mitigating the risks that arise while conducting our business. Major risks identified by the 
businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating action on a continuing 
basis. 
 

Risks and Concerns 
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Your Company is exposed to a number of risks such as economic, regulatory, taxation and 
environmental risks. Some of the risks that may arise in its normal course of its business and impact 
its ability for future developments include inter-alia, credit risk, liquidity risk, counterparty risk, 
regulatory risk, commodity inflation risk and market risk. Over few years in retail business, your 
Company has developed supply chain for retailing vegetables from farmer to whole seller to the 
consumers. 
 
Risk Management is a critical exercise for all organizations, particularly ones operating in many 
locations / countries. The main aim of risk management is to identify and analyse the risks through a 
structured Risk-Benefit Analysis and mitigate those risks which are not beneficial to the organisation. 
 
 

Financial Performance & Position  
 

Income: 
During the year under the review, the Company has recorded gross revenue of operations of Rs.20.81 
and other interest income of Rs.10.83 Lakhs as against Revenue of  Rs.19.94 Lakhs in the previous 
year. After offsetting the expenses the company made a profit  of Rs.0.06 Lakhs against loss of Rs. 
4.49 Lakhs in the previous year. 

 
Expenditure: 
Company has incurred total expenses of Rs. 31.58 Lakhs, as against Rs. 24.37 Lakhs in the previous 
year. The company has incurred administrative and general expenses during the year. 
 

Balance Sheet 

 
Details Pertaining to the Net worth of the Company: 
 

Net worth as on 31.3.2019(in Rs.) Net worth as on 31.3.2018(in Rs.) 

96,744,125 96,973,668 

 

Cautionary Statement 
 

The above Management Discussion and Analysis contains certain forward looking statements within 
the meaning of applicable security laws and regulations. These pertain to the Company’s future 
business prospects and business profitability, which are subject to a number of risks and 
uncertainties and the actual results could materially differ from those in such forward looking 
statements. The risks and uncertainties relating to these statements include, but are not limited to, 
risks and uncertainties, regarding a fluctuations in earnings, our ability to manage growth, 
competition, economic growth in India, ability to attract and retain highly skilled professionals, time 
and cost over runs on contracts, government policies and actions with respect to investments, fiscal 
deficits, regulation etc. In accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance approved by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, shareholders and readers are cautioned that in the case of 
data and information external to the Company, no representation is made on its accuracy or 
comprehensiveness though the same are based on sources thought to be reliable. The Company does 
not undertake to make any announcement in case any of these forward-looking statements become 
materially incorrect in future or update any forward looking statements made from time to time on 
behalf of the Company 
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Corporate Governance 

 
Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance 

 
The Management believes in the highest standard of good and ethical corporate governance 
practices. Corporate growth, goals, transparency and enhanced stakeholder value are to be 
achieved only through good Corporate Governance. It is therefore not merely about enacting 
policies regulations and procedures but also about establishing an environment of trust and 
confidence among various shareholders. 

 

Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure  
 
In compliance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company has framed a Code for Prevention of Insider Trading & Code of 
Corporate Disclosure Practices (‘‘Insider Trading Code’’) based on the principle that Directors, 
Officers, and Employees of the Company owe a fiduciary duty to the members of the Company to 
place the interest of the members above their own and conduct their personal securities 
transactions in a manner that does not create any conflict of interest situation. The Insider 
Trading Code also seeks to ensure timely and adequate disclosure of Price Sensitive Information 
to the investors by the Company to enable them to take informed investment decisions with 
regard to the Company’s securities. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company is responsible for 
implementation of the Insider Trading Code. 
 

 

REGULATION 27 

 
Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations,2015, is a benchmark for the compliance practices and rules required to 
be  followed by listed companies as stipulated in SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 . 
Regulation is the baseline for good governance standards. 

 
At comfort, we not only adhere to the prescribed corporate governance standards and 
practices as given in Regulation 27 but we constantly strive to adopt the emerging 
practices. We believe that Corporate Governance is a journey towards sustainable 
value creation and is always an upward moving target. 

 
We follow corporate governance practices which inter-alia includes: 

 
❖ The Board of the Company comprises one Executive Directors and Three 

Independent Directors representing the total composition of the Board. 
 

❖ Consistent monitoring and improvement of the human and physical resources. 
 

❖ Introducing regular checks and audits and continuous improvement in already 
well defined systems and procedures. 

 
❖ Board/Committee meetings at regular intervals to keep the Board informed of the 

recent happenings. 
 

Board of 

Directors 

Compositi

on 

The Board consists of the qualified and able persons with vast experience in industry, 
finance management and law. The present strength of the Board is 4 Directors. The 
Chairperson of the Board is Non-executive. Three (3) Directors are Non Executive 
Independent and one (1) is Executive Director. 
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The Company is in full compliance with the Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

 

 
 

The Board does not have any Nominee Director representing any institution. None of the 
Independent Directors serve as an Independent Director in more than seven listed entities. 
None of the Directors of the Company are members in more than 10 mandatory 
committees nor act as a Chairman in more than 5 mandatory committees of public 
companies.  
 
The Board met at least once in each quarter and the maximum time gap between two 
Board meetings did not exceed the time limit prescribed in Regulation 17(2) of SEBI LODR. 
Six meetings were held during the Financial Year (‘FY’) ended March 31, 2019 viz 25th 
May,2018; 13th August, 2018; 13th November, 2018; 21st November,2018; 14th 
February, 2019 and 30th March, 2019. 

 
 

Role of Independent Directors 

 
The Independent Directors fulfil the conditions of Independence specified in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and requirements of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. A formal letter of appointment to Independent 
Directors as provided in the Companies Act, 2013 has been issued. As per regulation 
46(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the terms and conditions of appointment 
of independent directors are placed on the Company’s 
websitehttps://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Terms%20&%20Conditions%20Of%20Ap
pointment%20of%20Independent%20%20Directors.pdf. The maximum tenure of 
independent directors is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and regulation 
25(2) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015.  
 
The Company’s Independent Directors meet at least once in every financial year 
without the presence of Executive Directors or management personnel. One Meeting 
of Independent Directors was held on 29th March, 2019 during the year under review. 
 

CONFIRMATION PERTAINING TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

AS ON 31ST MARCH, 2019: 
 
In the opinion of Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Arvind Sharma, Mr. Gopal 
Vyas, Mrs. Premlata Purohit Non-Executive Independent directors are independent 
of the management and complies with criteria of Independent Director as placed in 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013. 

 

          REASONS FOR THE RESIGNATION OF AN INDEPENDENTDIRECTOR: 
 

During the year 2018-19, Mr. Amit Khandelwal as the Independent Director of the Company 
due to personal reasons and having pre-occupancy 
 

Composition and Category of Directors 

 
The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their  attendance at the 
Board Meetings and Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) held during the year, the 
number of Chairmanships / Directorships of all Boards excluding alternate 
directorship, directorship of private limited companies, foreign companies and 
companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the 
Committees of Board (Chairmanship /Membership of Board Committees include only 
Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship /Investors Grievance Committee 
across all public limited companies (listed as well as unlisted) including those of the 
Company), held by them as on March 31, 2019 are as follows: 
 
 

https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Terms%20&%20Conditions%20Of%20Appointment%20of%20Independent%20%20Directors.pdf
https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Terms%20&%20Conditions%20Of%20Appointment%20of%20Independent%20%20Directors.pdf
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Name of the 
Director  

Category  
 

No of board 
meeting during 
the FY 2018-19 

Attenda
nce at 
the 
AGM 
held on 
29th 
Septem
ber, 
2019 

No of 
Shares 
held  

Relationshi
p with 
Director  

No of 
Directorsh
ip in all 
Public 
Companie
s  

No of committee 
position held in 
all public 
companies  
 
 
 

Directorship 
in other listed 
Companies 

Held  Attended     Chairpers
on  

Membe
r  

 

Mr.Kama 
Agrawal 

DIN:07646000 

Executive  6 6 Yes  Nil None  Nil  0 1 WEBNET 
INFOWAY
S 
LIMITED
  

Mr.Arvindsh
arma 
DIN:035816
05 

Non 
executive, 
Independen
t  

6 6 Yes  Nil  None  Nil  0 2 Nil  

Mr. Amit 
Khandelwal* 

Non 
executive, 
Independen
t 

6 3 Yes  Nil  None  Nil  NA 
 

NA 
 

NA 
 

Mr. Gopal 
Vyas ** 
DIN: 
06553107 

Non 
executive, 
Independen
t 

3 3 NA Nil  None  Nil  1 1 ARNAV 
CORPORATION 
LIMITED 

Mrs. 
Premlata 
Purohit** 
DIN: 
07846020 

Non 
executive, 
Independen
t 

3 3 NA Nil  None  Nil  0 1 TAPARIA TOOLS 
LIMITED 

 

 

*Mr. Amit Khandelwal resigned w.e.f 30th March,2019 

**Mr. Gopal Vyas & Mrs. Premlata Purohit appointed w.e.f 13th November,2019 
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Board Procedure 

 
The Board meets at least once a quarter to consider and approve the Financial Results, 
Compliance of stock exchanges and review the operations and Performance of the Company. 
All the Board meetings are properly scheduled. Notice and Agenda papers containing all the 
relevant information are circulated to the Directors well in advance of each Board Meeting.  All 
the relevant and necessary information / documents are made available to the Board so as to 
enable the directors to take informed decisions. The Minutes of each Board / Committee 
meetings are circulated in draft to all the Directors for seeking their confirmation before the 
same is recorded in Minutes Book. 
 
During the year under review Company was in full compliance with the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 
Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors  
 
The following is the list of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of 
Directors as required in the context of Company’s Business and that the said skills are 
available with the Board Members : 
 

i. Knowledge on Company’s Businesses (Retail sale of Vegetables), policies and culture 
(including the mission, vision and values) major risks/ threats and potential 
opportunities and knowledge of the industry in which the Company operates 

 
ii. Behavioral Skills – attributes and competencies to use their knowledge and skills to 

contribute effectively to the growth of the Company  
 

iii. Business Strategy, Skills, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex 
Management, Administration, Decision Making. 

 
iv. Financial and Management Skills. 

 
v. Technical/ Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s 

Business. 
 
 

Training of non-executive members of the board / familiarization Programme: 
 
All new non-executive Directors are appointed on the Board of the Company are introduced to 
the culture through induction sessions. The Executive Directors and senior management 
provide an overview of the operations and familiarize the new Non-executive Directors on 
matters the morals and principles of the Company. 
 
They are introduced to the organization structures and various procedures. The Company has 
a detailed familiarization Programme for Independent Directors to familiarize them with the 
Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which 
the Company operates, business model of the Company etc. The details of such Programme is 
available on the website of the Company 
athttps://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Familiarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent
%20%20Directors.pdf 

 

Committees of the Board  
 

Audit Committee 

 
The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the Regulation 18 of SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The terms of reference, role and powers of the Audit Committee are as mentioned in Regulation 
18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
includes overseeing of the Company’s financial reporting process, reviewing with the 
management of the financial statements and the adequacy of the internal audit function, 

https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Familiarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20%20Directors.pdf
https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Familiarisation%20Programme%20for%20Independent%20%20Directors.pdf
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internal control and to discuss significant internal audit findings, statutory compliance and 
issues related to risk management and compliances. 
 
Audit Committee comprises of three directors, out of which two are Non Executive Independent 
Directors who are financially literate and possess sound knowledge of accounts, audit, finance 
etc.  
 
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under: 
 
I. the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of 

auditors of the Company; 
 

II. review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of 
audit process; 
 

III. examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report  thereon; 

 
 

IV. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related 
parties; 
 

V.  scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 
 
VI.  valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;  
 
VII.  evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
 
VIII.  monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 
 
IX.  Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and  the disclosure of its 
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 
 
X.  Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 
statutory auditors; 
 
XI.  Reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 
adequacy of the internal control systems; 
 
XII.  Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any,including the structure of the 
internal audit department, staffingand seniority of the official heading the department, 
reportingstructure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 
 
XIII.  Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings andfollow up thereon;  
 
XIV.  Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by theinternal auditors into 
matters where there is suspected fraud orirregularity or a failure of internal control systems 
of a materialnature and reporting the matter to the Board; 
 
XV.  Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences,about the nature and 
scope of audit as well as post-auditdiscussion to ascertain any area of concern; 
 
XVI.  To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in payments tothe depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders and creditors; 
 
XVII.  To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 
 
XVIII.  Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the whole-time FinanceDirector or any other 
person heading the finance function ordischarging that function) after assessing the 
qualifications, 
experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 
 
XIX.  Reviewing, with the management, financial statements, withparticular reference to: 

a) Matters required to be included in the Directors’Responsibility Statement to be 
includedin the Board’sReport in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3 of section134 of 
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the Act; 
b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices andreasons for the same; 
c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on theexercise of judgment by 
management; 
d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arisingout of  audit findings; 
e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating tofinancial statements;  
f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and 
g) Qualification in the draft audit report. 
 

XX.  Reviewing the utilization of loans and/or advances from/investment by the Company 
in the subsidiary exceeding ` 100crores or 10 % of the assets size of the subsidiary, whichever 
is 
lower including existing loans/advances/investments. 
 
XXI.  Such other functions/duties as may be prescribed by the Act, or  SEBI (LODR), 2015 
(as amended from time to time); and such other functions/duties as may be entrusted by the 
Board from time to time. 
 
In addition to the above the Audit Committee also reviews the information listed in Schedule 
II of Part C (B) of SEBI LODR. 
 
Changes in the Composition of Audit Committee 
 
During the year, the audit committee was reconstituted wherein Mr. Gopal Vyas was appointed 
as the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Chairman of Audit Committee is the Non-Executive 
Independent Directors. 
 
For the year ended March 31,2019, five meetings of the Audit Committee were held on the 
following dates: 

 
(i) 25th May, 2018 
(ii) 13th August, 2018 
(iii) 13th November, 2018 
(iv) 14th February, 2019 
(v) 30th March, 2019 

 
Composition of the Audit Committee and details of meeting attended by the members during 
the year under review: 
 

Name of the Director  
 

Nature of Membership  Meetings attended  

Mr. Gopal Vyas  
(w.e.f 13/11/2018) 

Chairperson 2 

Mr. Amit Khandelwal  
(resigned w.e.f 
13/11/2018) 

Chairperson 3 

Mr. Arvind Sharma  Member 5 

Mr. Kamal Agrawal  Member 5 
 
Mr. Gopal Vyas, Chairman of the Audit Committee is well conversant with accounting practices 
generally followed in India. Other members of the Committee consist of Mr. Arvind Sharma & 
Mr. Kamal Agrawal. 
 
The Chief Financial Officer, the Internal Auditor and the Statutory Auditors  are  permanent 
invitees to the audit committee meetings. It has been the practice of the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee to extend an invitation to the professional Directors to attend all the meetings. 
 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 
This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section  
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto and Regulation 
19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations. The terms of reference of the Nomination Remuneration 
Committee is to determine Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages to Managing 
Directors, Executive Directors and any compensation payments and also to recommend Board 
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payment of remuneration to Managing or Whole-Time Directors. 
 
Terms of Reference of the Directors Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as per the 
guidelines set out in Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 that inter alia include 
determination of the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for Directors. 

 
 
Composition and Attendance 
 
Present composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of three 
directors, out of which all is Non Executive independent Directors. During the MrsPremlata 
Purohit was appointed as the Chairperson of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
 

Name Nature of Membership Meetings Attended 

MrsPremlata Purohit 
(w.e.f. 13/11/2018) 

Chairperson 2 

Mr Arvind Sharma Member 2 

Mr Gopal Vyas 
(w.e.f. 13/11/2018) 

Member 2 

 
Meetings during the Year 

 
During the Financial Year 2018-19, three Meetings of Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
were held on 13th November, 2018 ; 21st November, 2018, 30th March, 2019. 
 
The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committeeincludes:  
 
a) Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,positive attributes and 
independence of a director andrecommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration  
of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; 
 
b) Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directorsand the Board; 

 
c)Devising a policy on Board diversity; 
 
d) Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors andwho may be appointed in 
senior management in accordancewith the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board 
theirappointment and removal; 
 
e) To recommend extending or continuing the terms of appointmentof Independent Directors, 
on the basis of report of performance evaluation of Independent Director; 
 
f) Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever formpayable to senior management 
and 
 
g) Such other functions/duties as may be entrusted by the Boardfrom time to time 
 

Details of Remuneration Paid to the Directors and KMP’s in 2018-19: 

 

• Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors: 
 

Name Sitting 

Fees 

No. of Shares 

held 

Mr. Amit Khandelwal* - - 

Mr. Arvind Sharma - - 

Mrs. Premlata Purohit** 8000 - 
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Mr. Gopal Vyas ** - - 

 

*Mr. Amit Khandelwal resigned w.e.f 30th March, 2019 

**Mrs. Premlata Purohit & Mr. Gopal Vyas appointed w.e.f 13thNovember,2018. 
 

• Remuneration paid to Executive Directors & KMP: 

 

Name Salary 
(Rs.) 

Bonus Other 
perks 

Commission Total 

  Mr. Kamal Agrawal - - - - - 

Mr. Rajesh Mavani* 1,25,000  - - 1,25,000 

Mr. Jeetendra Chanda**  - - -  

Ms.Kirti Airen*** 59,600    59,600 

Mrs. Ishita Rushabh 
Sanghavi**** 

- - - - - 

 
*Mr. Rajesh Mavani Resigned w.e.f. 31st January, 2019 
* *Mr. Jeetndra Chanda appointed w.e.f 30th March, 2019 
* **Ms.Kirti Airen resigned w.e.f 22nd June, 2018.  
* ***Mrs. Ishita RushabhSanghavi appointed w.e.f 21st November,2018. 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 
 
In pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 (5),and Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 
2015 the  Stakeholders’  Relationship Committee has been formed by the Company comprises 
of three Directors namely  Mr. Gopal Vyas being the Chairman of the Committee. 
 
Terms of Reference of the Investors Grievance Committee are as per the guidelines set out in 
the listing agreement with the Stock Exchanges and the relevant clauses of the Articles of 
Association of the Company that inter alia include : 
 

a) looking into the Investors complaints on transfer and transmission of shares, 
 

b) issue of duplicate share certificates,  
 

c) non receipt of Balance Sheet, etc. 
 

d) to ensure expeditious share transfer process. 
 

e)Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rightsby shareholders; 
 
f) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted inrespect of various services being 
rendered by Registrar & Share Transfer Agents; 
 
g) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken forreducing the quantum of 
unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual 
reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company and 
 
h)  Such other functions/duties as may be entrusted by the Board 
from time to time. 

 
M/s. Adroit Corporate Service Pvt. Limited is the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company 
and the committee oversees the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent and 
recommends major for overall improvement in the quality of investor services.  
 
During the year Mr Gopal Vyas was appointed as the Chairperson of the Stakeholder  
Relationship Committee with effect from 13th November, 2018. 
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Composition and Attendance 
 

Name of the Director  
 

Nature of Membership  Meetings attended  

Mr. Gopal Vyas  
(w.e.f 13/11/2018) 

Chairperson 1 

Mr. Amit Khandelwal  
(resigned 
w.e.f13/11/2018) 

Chairperson 3 

Mr. Arvind Sharma  Member 4 
 

Mrs. Premlata Purohit 
(w.e.f 13/11/2018) 

Member 1 

 
All member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is Non-Executiveand Independent 
Directors. Continuous efforts are made to ensure that grievances, if any, are more 
expeditiously redressed to the complete satisfaction of the investors.  

 
The Committee specifically look into the redressal of grievances of Shareholders. The 
committee considers and resolves the grievances of the Share holders of the Company 
including complaints related to Transfer of shares, Non -receipt of Annual  Reports, issue of 
duplicate share certificates, transmission of shares and other shareholder related  queries, 
complaints, etc. No application for share transfers was pending as on 31 st March, 2019.  
 
In addition to above, this Committee is also empowered to oversee administrative matters like 
opening / closure of Company’s Bank accounts, grant and revocation of general, specific and 
banking powers of attorney and other administrative matters as delegated by Board from time 
to time. 
 
During the year ended March 31, 2019, four meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee were held on the following dates: 

 
(i) 25th May, 2018 
(ii) 13th August, 2018 
(iii) 13th November, 2018 
(iv) 14th February, 2019 

 

Name and Designation of Compliance Officer: 
 
As on 31st March, 2019, Mrs.Ishita Sanghavi, Company Secretary, has been appointed as the 
Compliance Officer, as required under Regulation 6 of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing 
Regulations”). He has been entrusted the task of overseeing the Share Transfer work done by 
the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents and attending to grievances of the Shareholders and 
Investors intimated to the Company directly or through SEBI and Stock Exchanges. All 
complaints / grievances have been duly intimated to exchange under Regulation 13 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Company attends to the Investor’s grievances / correspondence expeditiously except in 
the case that are constrained by dispute or legal impediments. 
 

a. No. of Shareholders complaints received during the year 01 

b. No. of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of the 
shareholders. 

01 

c. No. of pending share transfers as on March 31, 2019 0 

 
 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, 
the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, and that 
of its Committees and individual directors. Manner in which such formal annual evaluation  
was made by the Board is given below: 
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➢ Performance evaluation criteria for Board, Committees of the Board and Directors was 

as per policy of the company. The criteria are placed on the Company’s website  
www.hitkitglobal.com. 

➢ Based on the said criteria, rating sheets were filled by each of the directors towards the 
end of the year with regard to evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees 
and Directors (except for the director being evaluated) for the year under review. 

➢ A consolidated summary of the ratings given by each of the directors was then 
prepared, based on which a report of performance evaluation was prepared by the 
Chairman in respect of the performance of the Board, its Committees and Directors 
during the year under review. 

➢ The report of performance evaluation so arrived at was then noted and discussed by 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board at their meetings held in 30 th 
March, 2019. 
 

As per the report of performance evaluation, the Board shall determine, inter alia, whether to 
continue the term of appointment of the independent director. During the year under review, 
there was no occasion to decide on the continuance of the term of appointment of any of the 
independent directors and hence the question of taking a decision on their re- appointment 
did not arise. 
 
 
MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 
In compliance with Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR) 
2015, the Independent Directors held their separate meeting on 29 th March,2019 without the 
attendance of non-independent directors and members of management, inter alia, to discuss 
the following: 
 
i) review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole; 
ii) review the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the 

views of executive directors and non-executive directors; and 
iii) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company 

Management and the Board, that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform their duties. 

 
All independent directors were present at the meeting, deliberated on the above and expressed  
their satisfaction. 
 
 

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT: 

 
The Board of Directors has laid down a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, for all Board 
Members and designated employees in the Senior Management. These codes have been posted 
on the Company’s website.  
https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Code%20of%20Conduct%20of%20Company.pdf 
 
For the year under review, all Board Members and designated employees in the Senior 
Management of the Company have confirmed their adherence to the provisions of the said 
Codes. 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING: 

 
The Company has instituted a comprehensive Code for prevention of Insider Trading, for its 
Directors and designated employees, in compliance with Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time. 
 
The objective of this Code is to prevent purchase and/ or sale of shares of the Company by an 
insider on the basis of unpublished price sensitive information. Under this Code, Directors 
and designated employees are completely prohibited from dealing in the Company’s shares 
when the Trading Window is closed. Further the Code specifies the procedures to be followed 
and disclosures to be made by Directors and the designated employees, while dealing with the 
shares of the Company and enlists the consequences of any violations.  

http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Code%20of%20Conduct%20of%20Company.pdf
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General Body Meetings: 

 
Location and time of the last 3 Annual General Meetings and Special Resolutions passed by 
the Company are noted below: 
 
 
 

Financial 

Year 

Location Day and Date Time Special Resolution 

2015-16 Rasoi Banquet, Opp. Goregaon 
Sports Complex, Link Road, 
Malad (W), 
Mumbai – 400 064 

Friday, 30th 
September, 
2016 

10.00 
a.m. 

No Special Resolution 
was passed 

2016-17 Rasoi Banquet, Opp. Goregaon 
Sports Complex, Link Road, 
Malad (W), 
Mumbai – 400 064 

Friday, 29th 
September, 
2017 

10.00 
a.m. 

No Special Resolution 
was passed 

2017-18 Kamal Banquet 
Hall,188/1500-01, Near 
Oshiwara Bus Depot, 
Goregaon (W), Mumbai-
400104. 

Saturday, 29th 
September, 
2018 

10.00 a.m. No Special Resolution 
was passed 

 
Whether any resolution was proposed to be conducted through postal ballot – No. 

 
All the above resolutions were put to vote by show of hands and were passed unanimously by the 
members of the company. In the last three years, only Three Special Resolution has been passed 
in the AGMs. 

 
DISCLOSURES ON RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 
The Company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature with the Promoters, 
Directors or the Management or relatives, etc. that may have potential conflict with the 
interests of the Company at large. All transactions were carried out on an arms length basis 
and were not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. 
 
Transactions with related parties entered into by the Company in the normal course of 
business were placed before the Audit Committee for approval. All related party transactions 
that were entered into during the financial year were on at arm’s length basis and were in the 
ordinary course of business. 

 
The Company has received disclosures from Senior Executives confirming that they have not 
entered into any financial or commercial transactions in which they or their relatives may 
have a personal interest. 
 
The related party transactions have been reviewed by the Audit Committee as required under 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and found them to be not materially significant.  
 
The Company has established a mechanism for implementing Whistle blower Policy. It is 
confirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit Committee.  
 
There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with 
Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have 
a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions 
are reviewed and recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Hit Kit Global Solutions Ltd.                                                             Annual Report 2018-19 

  

54  

 

Statutory Compliances 

 
The Company has ensured necessary compliance with the requirements of the Stock 
Exchange, SEBI and other authorities related to capital market and the details of non-
compliance and 
penalties are not applicable. 
 
 

Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy 

 
Pursuant to Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI(LODR), 2015, the Board has 
established a vigil mechanism for theDirectors and employees of the Company to report 
genuine concernsabout unethical behavior actual or suggested fraud or violation ofthe 
Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics. The Company has inplace Whistle Blower Policy to 
provide mechanism for Director oremployee of the Company to approach the Chairman of the 
AuditCommittee. The Policy is available on the Company’s website. 
https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Vigil%20%20Mechanism%20%20Whistle%20Blower%20P
olicy.pdf 
 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 

The Company has established a well-documented and robust risk management framework. 
Under this framework, risks are identified across all business processes of the Company on 
continuous basis. Once identified, these risks are systematically categorized as strategic ri sks, 
business risks or reporting risks. 
 
To address these risks in a comprehensive manner, each risk is mapped to the concerned 
department for further action. Based on this framework, Hit Kit Global Solutions Ltd., has set 
in place various procedures for Risk Management. 

 
 

Disclosures 
 

Details of non-compliances, penalties etc. imposed on the Company by SEBI or Stock 

Exchange or any other statutory authority on any matter related to capital market,  
during the last three years:- 
 
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchange, SEBI, and other 
Statutory Authorities on all matters relating to Capital Markets during the  last  three years.  
 
Disclosures of accounting treatment wherever applicable have been made in the Audited 
Financial Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2019. 
 
 

Subsidiaries: 

 
The Company do not have any subsidiary. 
 

Senior Management 
 
Disclosures have also been received from the senior managerial personnel relating to the 
financial and commercial transactions in which they or their relatives may have personal 
interest. However, none of this transaction has potential conflict with the interest of the 
company at a large. 
 

Mandatory requirements 
 

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  
 
 
 
 

https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Vigil%20%20Mechanism%20%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
https://www.hitkitglobal.com/img/pdf/Vigil%20%20Mechanism%20%20Whistle%20Blower%20Policy.pdf
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Non compliance of any requirements of Corporate Governance Report 

 
There have been no instances of non-compliance of any requirements of the Corporate 
Governance Report as prescribed by the Listing Regulations. 
 

Discretionary Requirements  
 

The Board 
A Company have non-executive chairperson and allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred  
in performance of her duties. 
 

Shareholder Rights 
 
Presently the company is not sending half-yearly communication. 
 

Modified opinion(s) in audit report 
 
It is always company’s endeavour to present unqualified financial statement s. There  are  no 
audit qualifications in the company’s financial statements.  
 
Separate posts of Chairperson and Managing Director (MD) 

 
The company have separate post of Chairperson and MD. 
 

Reporting of internal auditor 

 
The Internal Auditor is directly reporting to Audit Committee. 
 

Fees paid to the Statutory Auditors  

 

Particulars  

 

Amount (Rs) 

Audit Fees  
 

1,08,000 

Other Services/certificates 
 

- 

Reimbursement of expenses  
 

- 

 
 
Means of Communication 
 
Quarterly/Yearly Un-audited / Audited Financial Results were published during the financial 
year as follows: 

 

Financial Result Un-Audited / 
Audited* 

Newspapers 

Last year Fourth Quarter Ended 
and Year Ended March 

Audited Business Standard / 
Mumbai Lakshdeep 

First Quarter Ended June Un-Audited Business Standard / 
Mumbai Lakshdeep 

Second Quarter Ended September Un-Audited Business Standard / Mumbai 
Lakshdeep 

Third Quarter Ended December Un-Audited Business Standard / 
Mumbai Lakshdeep 

 
* The Board of Directors of the Company approved and took on record the Unaudited financial 
results within 45 days of quarter / half year and Audited financial results within 
60 days of year end and communicated these results to all Stock Exchanges where the  shares 
of the Company are listed and published in  newspapers  as  indicated above  and also put on 
Company’s website www.hitkitglobal.com. 
 

http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
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The Company also intimates the stock exchanges all price sensitive information or such other 
matters which in its opinion are material and of relevance to the investor / shareholders. The 
Financial Results are not being sent to each household of the Shareholders. The Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on financial and operational performance of the Company and 
General Shareholders Information is provided in the Annual Report.  

 

MD / CFO CERTIFICATION: 
 

As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 a Certificate duly certified by Mr. Kamal 
Agrawal, Managing Director & Mr. Jeetendra Chanda Chief Financial Officer has been 
obtained. The Certificate is annexed to this Report. 

 

Auditors’ Certificates and Disclosure on Compliance with Corporate Governance 

Requirements  
  

 
Regulation 17 to 27  and clauses (b) to (I of Sub regulation 46 and Para C,D and E of Schedule V 
of SEBI (LODR) Regulations are not applicable to the Company as Paid up Share Capital of the 
Company is less the 10 Crores and its Net worth does not exceed 25 Crores as on 31.3.2019. 
Hence Company is also not required to attach the Certificates from Auditors mentioned in above 
regulation. 

 
 

On behalf of the Board 
 For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: August 13, 2019. 
 

 
 

DECLARATION UNDER REGULATION 26(3) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 
 
As provided under Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have confirmed 
compliance with the code of conduct for Board of Directors and Senior Management forthe year 
ended March 31, 2019. 
 
 

By Order of the Board 
 For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 

sd/-  
Kamal Agrawal 

Managing Director 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

sd/- sd/- 
Kamal Agrawal Premlata Purohit 
Managing 
Director 

Non Executive 
Chairman 
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MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION 

 
We Kamal Agrawal, Managing Director and Jeetendra Chanda, CFO of the Company hereby confirm 
and certify that 
 

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the  year ended 
March 31, 2019 and that to the best of my knowledge and belief: 

 
(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact 

or contain any statement that might be misleading; 
 

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of  the  Company’s affairs  and  are 
in compliance with the existing generally accepted accounting standards, applicable  laws 
and regulations. 

 
b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the  Company’s Code  
of Conduct. 

 
c) We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management 

Committee have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by theCompany.  
 

d) we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the  effectiveness of the  internal control systems of  
the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have  disclosed to  the Auditors and 
the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if  
any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

 
e) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee 

 
(i) that no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;  

 
(ii) that no changes in accounting policies during the year and have been disclosed in the 

notes to the financial statements; and 
 

(iii) That no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 
involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in 
the company’s internal control system over financial reporting.  

 
On behalf of the Board 

 For Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: Mumbai, 
Date: August 13, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

sd/- sd/- 
Kamal Agrawal Jeetendra P Chanda  
Managing Director. Chief Financial Officer  
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Annexure to the Corporate Governance Report 

Shareholders’ Information 

AGM: Date, time 
and venue 

  Saturday, 28thSeptember, 2019 at 10.30 a.m. at Kamal Banquet Hall, 
188/1500-1501, Best Road, Opp. Neeta Bldg., Near Oshiwara Bus 
Depot, Motilal Nagar I, Goregaon West, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400104 

Financial Year   01stApril, 2018 to 31stMarch 2019 

Date of Book 
Closure 

  21thSeptember, 2019 to 28thSeptember, 2019 (both days inclusive) 

Last Date of 
receipt of Proxy 
Forms 

  Wednesday, 25thSeptember, 2019 before 5.00 p.m. at the Registered 
Office of the Company. 

Dividend   In order to conserve resources for future growth, your Directors do not 
recommend any dividend for the year under consideration. 

Listing on Stock 
Exchanges 

1.  2.  3.  BSE Ltd., P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001Tel: 
22721233 /34 

 
Payment of 
Annual Listing 
Fees to Stock 
Exchanges 

  The Company has paid the listing fees for the year  2018-19  to  the 
Stock Exchange where the Company’s Shares are listed. The 
Company has entered into a uniform Listing Agreement withBSE 

Stock Code   The Company’s Stock Code is 532359 

Bombay Stock 
Exchange 
Stock Market 
Price Data (in 
Rs./pershare) 
*: The 
Company’s 
scrip’s are not 
traded at Pune 
and 
Ahmedabad 
Stock 
Exchange 
during the 
financial year. 
Therefore, no 
market data 
has been given 
of 
this exchange. 

 Month High 
(Rs.) 

Low 
(Rs.) 

 No of 
shares 
Traded  

Total 
Turnover  

 

April, 2018 0.35 0.31 10,422 13 
May, 2018 0.30 0.30 30 2 
June, 2018 0.31        0.30 2,667 4 
July, 2018 0.29 0.28 7,263 4 

August, 2018 0.28 0.28 5,900 5 
September, 

2018 
0.27 0.24 8,900 10 

October, 2018 0.25 0.22 18,864 12 
November, 

2018 
0.21 0.19 11,586 4 

December, 
2018 

0.20 0.19 16,512 10 

January, 2019 - -   
February, 2019 0.20 0.20 5,899 5 

March, 2019 0.20 0.19 19,030 9 

   
Source: BSE website 

Registrars and 
Share Transfer 
Agent 

  Adroit Corporate Service Pvt.Limited 
19, Jaferbhoy Industrial Estate, 1stFloor, Makwana Road, Marol Naka, 
Andheri (E), Mumbai – 400 059 Time: 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. (Monday 
– Friday) Phone: 0091 22 28596060 Fax: 0091 22 28503748 

Share Transfer 
System 

   99.96% of the equity shares of the Company are in electronic form. 
Transfer of these shares is done through the depositories with no 
involvement of the Company. As regards transfer of shares held in 
physical form thetransfer documents can be lodged with Adroit 
Corporate Services Pvt. Ltd. At the above mentioned address. 
Transfer of shares in physical form is normally processed within ten 
to twelve days from the date of receipt, if the  documentsare  complete 
in allrespects. The directors, Compliance officerand the Company 
Secretary are severally empowered to approve transfer. 
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Categories of Shareholders 
as on 31stMarch, 2019 

 
CATEGORY 

No. of shares % of 
Capital 

 

Promoter’s 44,14,184 11.93 

Private Corporate Bodies 72,43,747 19.58 

Public (In India) 2,50,44,289 67.69 

NRIs/ OCBs 2,82,617 0.76 

Corporate Body -Broker 15,163 0.04 

TOTAL 3,70,00,000 100.00 

Distribution of 
Shareholding as on 
31stMarch, 2019 

 No .of 
Equity 
Shares 
held 

 
No. of 

Shareholders 

 
% of 

Shareholders 

 
No. of 

Shares held 

% of 
Shares 
holding 

 

Upto- 
-- 500 

2,234 34.58 696416 1.88 
 

501– 
1000 

1,637 25.31 15,67,904 4.24 
 

1001– 
2000 

937 14.49 16,78,688 4.54 
 

2001- 
3000 

410 6.34 11,34,363 3.07 
 

3001- 
4000 

201 3.11 7,56,941 2.05 
 

4001- 
5000 

365 5.64 17,93,817 4.85 
 

5001- 
10000 

367 5.67 30,54,194 8.25 
 

10001 
and 

above 

 
346 

 
4.88 

 
263,17,677 

 
71.13 

 

 
TOTAL 

6,467 100.00 3,70,00,000 100.00 
 

Dematerialization of 
Shares and liquidity 

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in 
dematerialisedform and are available for trading on both the 
depositories in India viz. National Securities  Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central  Depository  Services  (India) Limited (CDSL). 
Equity shares of the Company representing 99.96% of the 
Company’s equity share capital are dematerialisedas on March 
31st,2019. 
The Company’s equity shares are regularly traded on the BSE Limited, 
in dematerialised form. 
Under the Depository System, the International Securities 
Identification Number (ISIN) allotted to the  Company’s shares  
isINE309B01023. 
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Secretarial  Audit 
Report Regarding 
Reconciliation   of 
Capital 

As stipulated by SEBI,  a qualified practicing Company Secretary 
carries out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admitted 
capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total  issued  and listed 
capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the report 
thereon is submitted to  theListed  Stock Exchanges. The audit 
confirms that the total listed and paid- up capital is in agreement 
with the aggregate of the total 
numberofsharesindematerialisedform(heldwithNSDLand 
CDSL) and the total number of shares in physicalform. 

Compliance Certificate 
from Auditors 

Regulation 17 to 27  and clauses (b) to (I of Sub regulation 46 and 
Para C,D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations are not 
applicable to the Company as Paid up Share Capital of the 
Company is less the 10 Crores and its Net worth does not exceed 
25 Crores as on 31.3.2019. Hence Company is also not required 
to attach the Certificates from Auditors mentioned in above 
regulation. 

 

Outstanding GDRs / 
ADRs and theirimpact 
on Equity: 

The Company has not issued any of theseinstruments. 

Legal Proceedings As at March 31, 2019, there was no litigation against the Company 
or any of its managing / whole-time directors, for 
any of the alleged offences. 

Voting Rights All the shares issued by the Corporation carry equal votingrights. 
Generally, matters at the general meetings are decided by a show 
of hands in the first instance. Voting by show of hands operates 
on the principle of ‘One Member-One Vote’. If majority of 
members raise their hands in  favour of  a particular resolution, 
it is taken as passed, unless a poll is demanded. 
The fundamental voting principle in a company, in case voting 
takes place by a poll, is ‘One Share-One Vote’. On a poll being 
taken, any decision arrived thereat is final, thus over  ruling any 
decision taken on a show of hands. No business has been 
transacted through postal ballot. 

Control of the Company The Company is neither owned nor controlled, directly or 
indirectly, by any person, entity or government and also does not 
owe allegiance to any promoter or promoter group. To the best of 
its knowledge and belief, the Company does not have any 
arrangement, the operation or consequence ofwhich 
might directly or indirectly result in a  changein  its ownership, 
control or  management. 

Folio Consolidation Shareholders holding shares under more than one folio may write 
to the registrar to consolidate their folios.  In  case  of joint 
holdings even if the order of names are different, shareholders 
can have them transposed without payment of stampduty by 
sending a letter duly  signed  by allthe 
shareholders. 

Nomination Facility Every shareholder in a company may at any time, nominate in 
the prescribed manner, a person to whom his shares in the 
company shall vest in the event of his death. Individual 
shareholders holding shares either singly or jointly can make   a 
nomination. If  theshares  are held jointly, all  the shareholders 
may jointly nominate any individual personas 
their nominee. Nomination stands automatically rescinded on 
transfer / demateria-lisation of the shares. 
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 Shareholders holding shares in single name are advised to 
nominate any individual by submitting the prescribed 
nomination form  i.e.Form–SH-13, in duplicate, to the registrar. 
Shareholders holding shares in dematform are 
requested to contact their DP. 

Website Information regarding the Corporation can  alsobe  accessed on 
its website, www.hitkitglobal.com. The  ‘Investors’  section on the 
website of the Corporation contains an array of information on 
investor services, financials, corporateprofile, 
shareholding pattern, disclosures made to stock exchanges. 

Address for 
Correspondence 

Hit Kit Global Solutions Ltd. 
55, Tirupati Plaza, 1stFloor, 
Tirupati Shopping Centre Premises Co-Op. Society Ltd., 
S V Road, Santacruz (W), Mumbai 400 054 
Tel no. 91-22- 6561 4984,Fax : 91-22- 26002894 
E-mail address: hitkit.global@gmail.com Designated 
e-mail address for investor services: 
info@hitkitglobal.com 
Website: www.hitkitglobal.com 

http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
mailto:hitkit.global@gmail.com
mailto:info@hitkitglobal.com
http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Members of HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED  

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED (“the Company”), 
which comprises the balance sheet as at 31st March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.   

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and profit/loss, changes in equityand its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date.  

Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.  

Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

Forensic Audit by SEBI 

Securities Exchange Board of India (herein referred to as “SEBI”) in the interest of investors, vide its 
letter dated August 7, 2017 took pre-emptive interim measures under section 11(1) of Securities 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) in respect of certain listed companies identified as “shell 
companies” by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs including Hit Kit Global Solutions Ltd and ordered a 
Forensic Audit on the Company. The Company has complied with the same and submitted necessary 
information required by Forensic Auditor from time to time. As on date, the case is still pending for final 
disposal.  

Auditor’s Response 

Our audit procedures included understanding and evaluating processes and controls designed and 
implemented by the management for assessment of litigations and testing their operating effectiveness; 
obtaining the list of litigation matters, inspecting the supporting evidence and critically assessing 
management’s evaluation through discussions with management on both the probability of outcome 
and the magnitude of potential outflow of economic resources; reading recent communications received 
and the Company’s responses to such communications to assess the status of the litigations; where 
relevant, reading most recent advice obtained by management from independent tax consultants and 
evaluating the grounds presented therein; evaluating independence, objectivity and competence of the 
management’s consultants;  understanding the current status of the forensic audit.  
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In light of the above, we did not identify any material exceptions as a result of above procedures. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 

Statements  

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give 
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows 
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of  adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.   

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.  

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements  

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we 
give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to 
the extent applicable.  

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.  

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books  

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.  

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian  Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015.  

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.  
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”.  

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position.  

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.  

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.  

 
 
For B M Gattani& Co 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No. 113536W 
 
 
 
 

BalmukundGattani 
Partner 
Membership No. 047066 
 
 

Place: Mumbai 

Date:   29th May, 2019 
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘ Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our 

report to the Members of HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED of even date) 

(i) In respect of the Company’s fixed assets: 

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of fixed assets. 

b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance 
with a regular programme of verification that, in our opinion, provides for physical verification 
of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and 
based on the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the title 
deeds comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings that are freehold, are 
held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

(ii) As explained to us, the nature of the business of the Company is such that it does not have any 
physical inventories. Accordingly, clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered 
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, clause (iii) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 

(iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
advanced loans to Directors/Company in which the director is interested to which the provisions of 
Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply and hence not commented upon. Also, in our opinion 
and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made 
investment and given guarantee/provided security which falls under the purview of section 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and hence not commented upon. 
 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits 
during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at 31st March, 2019 and therefore, 
the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) As per the information and explanation given to us, the maintenance of cost records specified by 
the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

(vii)  

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax, Sales-tax, 
Service Tax, Customs duty, Excise duty, Value Added Tax, cess and any other material 
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Customs duty, Excise 
duty, Value Added Tax, cess and any other material statutory dues in arrears, as at March 
31, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except the 
following: 
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Name of the 

Statue 
Nature of Dues 

Period to which demand 

relates 

Amount 

(in Rs) 

Income Tax Act, 

1961 

 

Interest on payment default 

u/s 201 
Prior Years 8,673.5 

Late filing fees u/s 234E Prior Years 400 

Late filing fees u/s 234E FY 2017-18 200 

Short Payment FY 2018-19 116 

Interest on payment default 

u/s 201 
FY 2018-19 140 

Non Payment of TDS u/s 194C  FY 2014-15 7 

NonPayment of TDS u/s 194J FY 2017-18 4,000 

Non Payment of TDS u/s 194J FY 2015-16 1 

Non Payment of TDS u/s 194J FY 2014-15 3 

Income Tax  FY 2007-08 70,525 

Income Tax  FY 2013-14 240 

Income Tax  FY 2010-11 39,240 

Income Tax  FY 2013-14 5,830 

Professional Tax 

Act,1975 

Non Payment of Professional 

Tax 
FY 2017-18 22,700 

 Payment of Professional Tax FY 2018-19 4,900 

b) There were no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax which 
have not been deposited as at March 31, 2019 on account of dispute. 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any loans 
or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and government or has not issued any debentures. 
Hence reporting under clause 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any money 
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans 
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and 
hence, not commented upon. 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a Nidhi Company. Consequently, provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence, not commented upon. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
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(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during 
the year under review and hence, reporting under clause 3 (xiv) are not applicable to the Company 
and hence, not commented upon. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be 
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 
 

For B M Gattani& Co 

Chartered Accountants 
(FRN: 113536W) 

BalmukundGattani 

Partner 
(M. No. 047066) 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : 29th May, 2019 
 
 

ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements section of our 

report to the members of HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LIMITED of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS 

LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements 
of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor’s Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
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to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion  

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For B M Gattani& Co 
Chartered Accountants 
(Firm Registration No.113536W) 

 
 
 
 

BalmukundGattani 
Partner 
(M. No. 047066) 

 
Place : Mumbai 

Date : 29th May, 2019 
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HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LTD 

Balance Sheet for the year ended 31 March 2019 

(Amount  in Rs.) 

Particulars Note No. 
 As at 31  

March 2019  

 As at 31  

March 2018  

ASSETS     

Non-current assets     

  Property, Plant and Equipment 1        4,93,28,460  

                    

4,93,46,840  

  Financial Assets     

   Investments 2        3,92,40,000  

                    

4,00,95,000  

  Deferred tax assets (net) 3                  1,368                                1,176  

  Other non-current assets 4        1,01,01,090  

                    

1,01,00,650  

Current assets     

  Financial Assets     

   Trade receivables 5           10,00,000                                     -    

   Cash and cash equivalents 6                11,837  

                         

1,44,196  

Total ASSETS         9,96,82,755  

                   

9,96,87,862  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     

Equity     

  Equity Share capital 7        7,40,00,000  

                    

7,40,00,000  

  Other Equity 8        2,27,44,125  

                    

2,29,73,668  

Liabilities     

  Current liabilities     

  Financial Liabilities     

   Trade payables 9           17,10,030  

                       

17,10,030  

  Other current liabilities 10           10,04,504  

                       

10,01,908  

  Provisions 11             2,24,096                                2,256  

Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES         9,96,82,755  

                   

9,96,87,862  

For B. M. Gattani& Co On Behalf of the Board  
Chartered Accountants For HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LTD 

Firm Regn No. 113536W (CIN : L70100MH1988PLC049929) 

       

       
BalmukundGattani (Kamal Agrawal)   (Arvind Sharma)  

Proprietor  Managing Director   Director  

Membership No. 047066 DIN: 07646000   DIN: 03581605  

       
Date  : 29-05-2019    
Place: Mumbai    

    (Jeetendra Chanda)   (Ishita Sanghavi)  

    Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary  
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For B. M. Gattani& Co On Behalf of the Board   

Chartered Accountants For HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LTD 

Firm Regn No. 113536W (CIN : L70100MH1988PLC049929) 

          

        
 

BalmukundGattani (Kamal Agrawal)    (Arvind Sharma)  

Proprietor  Managing Director    Director  

Membership No. 047066 DIN: 07646000    DIN: 03581605  

          

Date  : 29/05/2019       

Place : Mumbai (Jeetendra Chanda)    (Ishita Sanghavi)  

    Chief Financial Officer    Company Secretary  

 

  
 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019 

      (Amount  in Rs.)  
Particulars Note No As at 31 

March 
2019 

 As at 31 March 
2018  

I Revenue From Operations 12 20,81,441         19,94,400  
II Other Income 13 10,83,000                          -    

III Total Income (I+II)   31,64,441    19,94,400  
IV EXPENSES       
  Cost of materials consumed   -                            -    
  Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 14 14,12,721            7,73,579  
  Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and 

work-in-progress 
                         

-    
                        -    

  Employee benefits expense 15 4,10,000  6,99,776  
  Finance costs 16 6,478  1,729  
  Depreciation and amortization expense 1 18,380  15,110  
  Other expenses 17 15,46,597  9,46,847  

  Total expenses (IV)   33,94,176  24,37,041  
V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (III-IV)   (2,29,735) (4,42,641) 
VI Exceptional Items 

 
 -                            -    

VII Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)  
 

(2,29,735) (4,42,641) 
VIII Tax expense: 18 192   (6,652) 

  (1) Current tax   -      
  (2) Deferred tax   192            1,848  
  (3) Excess/Short provision of tax   -    (8,500) 

IX Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII-VIII)   (2,29,543) (4,49,293) 

X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations   -                  -    
XI Tax expense of discontinued operations   -                            -    

XII Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) (X-XI)                          
-    

                        -    

XIII Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII)   (2,29,543) (4,49,293) 

XIV Other Comprehensive Income         -                            -    

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV) 
(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the period) 

  (2,29,543) (4,49,293) 

XVI Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):       
  (1) Basic   (0.0062) (0.0121) 
  (2) Diluted    (0.0062) (0.0121) 

XVII Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):     
  

  

  (1) Basic   -                            -    
  (2) Diluted    -                            -    

XVIII Earnings per equity share(for discontinued       
  & continuing operations)       
  (1) Basic   (0.0062) (0.0121) 
  (2) Diluted    (0.0062) (0.0121)  
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HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LTD 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019 

                  

PARTICULARS 
AS AT 

31/03/2019 

AS AT 

31/03/2018 

Cash flows from Operating Activities         

Profit for the Year             (2,29,735)     (4,42,641) 

Depreciation and  Amortization                18,380           15,110  

Interest Income             (10,00,000)                 -    

Finance costs                      6,478                  -    

Operating profit / (loss) before working capital 

changes     (12,04,877)     (4,27,531) 

Changes in assets and liabilities:           

Trade Receivables            (10,00,000)          65,450  

Other non current assets                     (440)   

Short term Provisions               2,21,840                  -    

Trade Payables                            -          8,35,000  

Other Current liabilities                    2,596        4,22,881  

Net Cash Generated From/ (Used in) operations     (19,80,881)      8,95,800  

Tax paid (net of refunds)                          -             43,500  

Net Cash From/(Used in ) Operating Activities (A)   (19,80,881)      8,52,300  

Cash Flows from Investing Activities         

Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets         

Purchase of Fixed Assets                          -           (24,000) 

Investments                 8,55,000    (13,00,000) 

Interest Income               10,00,000                  -    

Net cash from/(Used in) Investing Activities (B)     18,55,000    (13,24,000) 

Cash flows from Financing Activities         

Finance cost                    (6,478)                 -    

Net cash from/(Used in) Financing Activities (C)            (6,478)                 -    

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents during the year (A+B+C)     (1,32,359)     (4,71,700) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year         1,44,196        6,15,895  

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year            11,837        1,44,196  

 
 
For B. M. Gattani& Co On Behalf of the Board   

Chartered Accountants For HIT KIT GLOBAL SOLUTIONS LTD 

Firm Regn No. 113536W (CIN : L70100MH1988PLC049929) 

          

        
 

BalmukundGattani (Kamal Agrawal)    (Arvind Sharma)  

Proprietor  Managing Director    Director  

Membership No. 047066 DIN: 07646000    DIN: 03581605  

          

Date  : 29/05/2019       

Place : Mumbai (Jeetendra Chanda)    (Ishita Sanghavi)  

    Chief Financial Officer    Company Secretary  
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Notes to Accounts  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note 1: Property, Plant & Equipment

Particulars

Land
Air 

Condition
EPBAX

Furniture & 

Fixtures
HP Laser Computers Total

Gross Carrying Amount March 31, 

2019 -                

Opening Gross Carrying Amount 4,92,95,000        22,500         8,875           16,100         17,850         24,000        4,93,84,325 

Additions -                      -               -               -               -               -              -                

Closing gross carrying amount 4,92,95,000        22,500          8,875            16,100          17,850          24,000        4,93,84,325 

-                

Accumulated Depreciation -                

Opening Accumulated Depreciation -                      13,072         5,153           4,830           10,204         4,226          37,485          

Depreciation charged during the year -                      4,276           1,688           1,528           3,392           7,496          18,380          

Closing Accumulated Depreciation -                      17,348         6,841           6,358           13,596         11,722        55,865          

-                

Net carrying amount March 31, 2019 4,92,95,000        5,152            2,034            9,742            4,254            12,278        4,93,28,460 

Net carrying amount March 31, 2018 4,92,95,000        9,428            3,722            11,270          7,646            19,774        4,93,46,840 
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Note No Particulars  As at 31 March 

2019  

 As at 31 March 

2018  

2 Non Current Investments      

  Investments in Joint Venture        3,92,40,000         4,00,95,000  

  Total       3,92,40,000        4,00,95,000  

        

  Aggregate amount of quoted investments                        -                           -    

   Aggregate amount of unquoted investments        3,92,40,000         4,00,95,000  

  Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments                        -                           -    

        

3 Deferred tax assets (net)     

  Deferred tax assets     

  Property, plant and equipment             1,368.4              1,176.2  

  Total                  1,368                   1,176  

  Opening Balance                  1,176                    (672) 

  Less: Deferred Tax Expenses                     192                   1,848  

   Total                   1,368                   1,176  

        

4 Other non-current assets     

  Capital Advances         1,00,00,000         1,00,00,000  

  Advances other than capital advances                         -                           -    

  Security Deposits             1,01,090              1,00,650  

  Total       1,01,01,090        1,01,00,650  

        

5 Trade Receivables     

  Unsecured Considered Good           10,00,000                         -    

  Total          10,00,000                         -    

        

6 Cash and Cash Equivalents     

  Balances With Banks                  8,948                 16,537  

  Cash on hand                  2,889              1,27,659  

  Total                11,837              1,44,196  
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     As at 31 March 2019   As at 31 March 2018  

7 Equity Share Capital  No. of shares   Amount   No. of shares   Amount  

  Authorised Share Capital         

  45000000 Equity Shares of Rs 2/- 
each 

       
4,50,00,000  

       
9,00,00,000  

       
4,50,00,000  

       
9,00,00,000  

            

  Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up         

  37000000 Equity Shares of Rs 2/- 
each 

       
3,70,00,000  

       
7,40,00,000  

       
3,70,00,000  

       
7,40,00,000  

  Total       
3,70,00,000  

      
7,40,00,000  

      
3,70,00,000  

      
7,40,00,000  

            

  Terms / Rights attached to equity shares       

            

  The Company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs 2 per share. Each holder of equity 
share is entitled to one vote per share held. All the equity shares rank paripassu in all respects including 
but not limited to entitlement for dividend, bonus issue and rights issue. In the event of liquidation, the 
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all 
liabilities in proportion to their shareholding. 

            

  The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares     

  Name of the Shareholder  As at 31st March 2019   As at 31st March 2018  

     No. of 
Shares  

 % held   No. of 
Shares  

 % held  

  Equity shares with voting rights         

  WebnetInfoways Ltd.           
44,14,184  

11.93%           
44,14,184  

11.93% 

  Glimmer Enterprise Pvt Ltd.           
19,92,300  

5.38%                        
-    

                       
-    

  Glimmer Mecantile Pvt Ltd.                        
-    

                       
-    

          
19,92,300  

5.38% 

  Vora Construction Ltd           
39,30,706  

10.62%           
39,30,706  

10.62% 

    1,03,37,190  27.94% 1,03,37,190  27.94% 

            

  The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below   

     No. of shares   Amount   No. of shares   Amount  

  Equity Shares at the beginning of the 
year 

       
3,70,00,000  

       
7,40,00,000  

       
3,70,00,000  

       
7,40,00,000  

  Add: Fresh Issue/ESOP                        
-    

                       
-    

                       
-    

                       
-    

  Less: Buy Back                          
-    

                       
-    

                       
-    

                       
-    

  Equity Shares at the end of the year 3,70,00,000  7,40,00,000  3,70,00,000  7,40,00,000  
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8 Other Equity     

  Securities  Premium Account       

  As per last Balance Sheet           59,76,900            59,76,900  

             59,76,900            59,76,900  

  General Reserve      

  As per last Balance Sheet        1,24,90,859         1,24,90,859  

          1,24,90,859        1,24,90,859  

  Surplus      

  As per last Balance Sheet           45,05,908            49,55,201  

  Add: Net Profit / (Loss)            (2,29,543)           (4,49,293) 

             42,76,365            45,05,908  

        

  Total       2,27,44,124        2,29,73,667  

        

  Nature and Purpose of Reserves     

  (a) Securities Premium Account: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares 
is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. 

  (b) General Reserve: The Company has transferred a portion of the net profit of the Company before 
declaring dividend to general reserve pursuant to the earlier provisions of Companies Act 1956. 
Mandatory transfer to general reserve is not required. 

  (c) Retained Earnings / Surplus: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned 
till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. 

        

9 Trade payables     

  Unsecured Considered Good           17,10,030            17,10,030  

  Total          17,10,030            17,10,030  

        

10 Other current liabilities     

  Expenses Payable             9,36,117              9,75,197  

  Professional Tax Payable                28,800                 22,700  

  TDS Payable                39,587                   4,011  

  Total          10,04,504            10,01,908  

        

11 Current Provisions     

  Others     

  Provisions for Taxation                  5,996                   2,256  

  Provision for PT                  2,100                         -    

  Provision for audit fees             2,16,000                         -    

  Total            2,24,096                   2,256  
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Note 
No 

Particulars  As at 31 March 
2019  

 As at 31 March 
2018  

12 Revenue From Operations     

  Sale of products             20,81,441              19,94,400  

  Total            20,81,441             19,94,400  

        

13 Other Income     

  Interest Income             10,00,000                           -    

  Other non-operating income                  83,000                           -    

  Total            10,83,000                           -    

        

14 Purchases of Stock-in-Trade     

  Purchases of Stock-in-Trade             14,12,721                7,73,579  

  Total            14,12,721               7,73,579  

        

15 Employee benefits expense     

  Salaries and wages               4,10,000                6,95,000  

  Staff welfare expense                          -                       4,776  

  Total              
4,10,000  

             6,99,776  

        

16 Finance costs     

  Other Borrowing Cost                    6,478                     1,729  

  Total                    
6,478  

                   1,729  

        

17 Other expenses     

  Payments to the auditor     

  Auditor               1,18,000                   47,200  

  For internal audit               1,18,000                           -    

                 
2,36,000  

                 47,200  

  BSE Listing Fees               2,98,350                2,87,500  

  Central Depository Services                  57,948                   37,812  
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Conveyance Expenses                          -                       6,881  

  Electricity Expenses                  32,660                   24,617  

  Interest on  Delayed Payment                          -                     18,728  

  Interest on  TDS                       227                     2,013  

  Interest on BSE Listing Fees                  21,650                           -    

  Late TDS Filing Fees                    5,194                           -    

  MTNL                  26,027                   14,674  

  NSDL Charges                          -                     76,700  

  Office Expenses               1,00,000                           -    

  Physical and Demat Service Charges               1,26,282                   63,480  

  Postage & Courier                          -                       1,990  

  Printing & Stationery                  20,180                   32,203  

  Professional Fees Paid               3,86,840                1,12,260  

  Professional Tax (Companies)                    2,500                     2,500  

  Provision for Profession Tax                    2,100                           -    

  Rent Charges               1,80,000                1,80,000  

  Sarvodaya Advertising Agency                  42,557                   27,013  

  Tata Docomo 65614984                       294                     3,488  

  Website Expenses                    7,788                     7,788  

  Total            15,46,597               9,46,847  

 
 

 
18 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE  As at 31 
March 2019  

 As at 31 
March 2018  

A. Components of Income Tax Expense     

          

  Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss     

    Current Tax     

    Current Tax on the profits for the year                    -                      -    

    Adjustments for current tax of prior periods                    -              (8,500) 

          

    Total a                    -              (8,500) 
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    Deferred Tax     

    Origination and Reversal of Temporary Differences                 192              1,848  

          

    Total b                 192              1,848  

          

    Total (a+b)                 192            (6,652) 

          

B. Reconciliation of Tax Expense and the Accounting profit multiplied 
by India's Tax rate 

    

  Profit/(loss) for the period       (2,29,735)      (4,42,641) 

  Tax at the Indian Tax rate of 26%                    -                      -    

          

  Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in computing 
taxable income 

                   -                      -    

  Adjustments of current tax of prior periods                    -              (8,500) 

  Tax losses for which no Deferred income tax was recognised                    -                      -    

  Income exempt from income tax                    -                      -    

  Incremental Deferred Tax Asset on Property Plant & Equipment                 192              1,848  

          

  Income Tax Expense                 192            (6,652) 

  Effective Tax Rate -0.08% 1.50% 

 
 
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March,2019 
 

19 Fair value measurements                 

  Financial instruments by category:               

  31-Mar-19 

    Carrying Value Fair Value hierarchy 

  
Particulars 

FVTPL FVTOCI 
Amortised 

Cost Total 

Level 

1 

Level 

2 

Level 

3 Total 

  Financial Assets                 

  
(i) Non Current Investments           -                 -    

             

3,92,40,000  

              

3,92,40,000            -              -    

          

-    

       

-    

  
(ii) Trade Receivable           -                 -    

                 

10,00,000  

                  

10,00,000            -              -    

          

-    

       

-    

  (iii) Cash and Cash 

Equivalents           -                 -    
                       

11,837  

                         

11,837            -              -    

          

-    

       

-    

  
TOTAL           -                 -    

            

4,02,51,837  

              

4,02,51,837             -               -    

           

-    

       

-    

  Financial Liabilities                 

  
(i) Trade Payables           -                 -    

                 

93,82,230  

                  

93,82,230            -              -    

          

-    

       

-    

  
TOTAL           -                 -    

                

93,82,230  

                  

93,82,230             -               -    

           

-    

       

-    

  

    

  

 

 

              

  31-Mar-18 
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    Carrying Value Fair Value hierarchy 

  
Particulars 

FVTPL FVTOCI 
Amortised 

Cost Total 

Level 

1 

Level 

2 

Level 

3 Total 

  Financial Assets                 

  
(i) Non Current Investments           -                 -    

             

4,00,95,000  

              

4,00,95,000          

  
(ii) Trade Receivable           -                 -    

                                

-    

                                   

-              -              -              -    

       

-    

  (iii) Cash and Cash 

Equivalents           -                 -    
                   

1,44,196  

                     

1,44,196            -              -              -    

       

-    

  
TOTAL           -                 -    

            

4,02,39,196  

              

4,02,39,196             -               -               -    

       

-    

  Financial Liabilities                 

  
(i) Trade Payables           -                 -    

                 

17,10,030  

                  

17,10,030            -              -              -    

       

-    

  
TOTAL           -                 -    

                

17,10,030  

                  

17,10,030             -               -               -    

       

-    

                    

  The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and bank balances, investments, and trade 
payables are considered to be approximately equal to the fair value. 

                    

  I. Fair value hierarcyhy                 

  The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. 
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the 
financial instruments that are  
(a) recognised and measured at fair value and,  
(b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.  
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the 
company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the Indian 
accounting standard. An explanation of each level is as follows : 

                    

  Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. For 
example, listed equity instruments that have quoted market price.  

  Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, 
traded bonds, over-the- counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which 
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. 
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included 
in level 2.  

  Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the 
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent 
consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3. 

                    

  II. Valuation techniques used to determine fair value           

  Significant valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:• the fair value 
of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the 
balance sheet date. 

    

  o  Use of quoted market price or dealer quotes for similar instruments         

  oUsing discounted cash flow analysis.             

                    

  The fair values computed above for assets measured at amortised cost are based on discounted cash 
flows using a current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 2 fair values in the fair value 
hierarchy due to the use of unobservable inputs. 
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20 Financial Risk Management         

            

  The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:   

  •    Credit risk ;         

  •    Liquidity risk ; and         

  •    Market risk         

            

  A. Credit risk          

  Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a 
financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily 
for trade receivables) and from its financing activities (deposits with banks and other 
financial instruments). 

            

  Credit risk management         

  Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously 
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in 
the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts 
and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other 
receivables and investments. 

  The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2019 and 2018 is the 
carrying value of each class of financial assets. 

            

i Trade and other receivables         

  
Credit risk on trade receivables is limited based on past experience and management's 
estimate. 

            

  Ageing of trade and other receivables that were not impaired was as follows.   

  Carrying amount 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18     

  

Neither Past due nor impaired               

5,00,000  

                       

-        

  

Past due but not impaired                            

-    

                       

-        

  

Past due more than 180 days               

5,00,000  

                       

-        

  

TOTAL             

10,00,000  

                       

-        

            

ii Cash and Cash Equivalents         

  

The Company held cash and bank balance with credit worthy banks of ` 11,837 at March 31, 
2019 (March 31, 2018: ` 1,44,196). The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as 
the Company generally invests in deposits with banks where credit risk is largely perceived 
to be extremely insignificant.  

            

  B. Liquidity risk          

  Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its 
obligations on time or at a reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises from 
obligations on account of financial liabilities – trade payables and borrowings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Hit Kit Global Solutions Ltd.                                                             Annual Report 2018-19 

  

82  

 
  

            

  Liquidity risk management         

  The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds 
to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, 
management considers both normal and stressed conditions. A material and sustained 
shortfall in our cash flow could undermine the Company’s credit rating and impair investor 
confidence. The Company maintained a cautious funding strategy, with a positive cash balance 
throughout the year ended 31st March, 2019 and 31st March, 2018. This was the result of 
cash delivery from the business. Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to 
service the financing of financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Company’s treasury 
department regularly monitors the rolling forecasts to ensure it has sufficient cash on-going 
basis to meet operational needs. Any short term surplus cash generated by the operating 
entities, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other 
operational requirements, are retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required).  

            

  Maturities of non – derivative financial liabilities   (Amount  

in Rs.) 

  Particulars As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 

  Less than 1 

year  

More than 

1 year 

Less than 1 

year  

More 

than 1 

year 

  Financial Liabilities - Current         

  i.  Trade payables             

17,10,030  

                       

-    

           

17,10,030  

                             

-    

  Total            

17,10,030  

                       

-    

          

17,10,030  

                              

-    

            

  C. Market risk         

  

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, interest 
rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments. The 
Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to interest rate risk and the market value 
of the investments. 

            

i Currency Risk         

  
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee. Currency risk is not material, as the 
Company does not have any exposure in foreign currency. 

            

ii      Interest Rate Risk         

  

Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair 
value interest rate risk is the risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing investments 
because of fluctuations in the interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the 
future cash flows of floating interest bearing investments will fluctuate because of fluctuations 
in the interest rates. 

            

  Exposure to interest rate risk         

  

According to the Company interest rate risk exposure is only for floating rate borrowings. 
Company does not have any floating rate borrowings on any of the Balance Sheet date 
disclosed in this financial statements. 
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iii Price Risk         

  

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes 
in market traded price. It arises from financial assets such as investments in quoted 
instruments. 

  a     Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate Instruments     

  

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value 

through Profit or Loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect Profit 

or Loss. 

            

  b     Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate Instruments   

  

The company does not have any variable rate instrument in Financial Assets or Financial Liabilities. 

  
 

21 Capital Management       
  

     

 
The company’s objectives when managing capital are to 
• safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue 
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 
• maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
 
The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the 
appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-today 
needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the 
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets. 
 
The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends 
to shareholders. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to 
maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. 
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Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 
CIN   No.L70100MH1988PLC049929 

Registered office: 55, Tirupati Plaza, 1st Floor, 

Tirupati Shopping Centre Premises Co-Op. Society Ltd., 

S V Road, Santacruz (W), Mumbai 400 054 
Tel no. 91-22- 6561 4984, Fax: 91-22- 2600 2894 

E-mail: hitkit.global@gmail.com Website www.hitkitglobal.com 

PROXY FORM 
Form No. MGT-11 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
 

I/We, being the member(s) of  shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint: 

 

(1) Name :  Address   :   

 

E-mail Id :  Signature :  or failing him 

 

(2) Name :  Address   :   

 

E-mail Id :  Signature :    
 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the TWENTY EIGHTH annual general meeting of the 
company, to be held on Saturday 28 th September, 2019 at Kamal Banquet Hall, 188/1500-1501, Best Road, Opp. Neeta Bldg., Near Oshiwara 
Bus Depot, Motilal Nagar I, Goregaon West, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400104  and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions and in 

such manner as are indicated below: 

 

 

No 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 

1 
Adoption of Annual Accounts and the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon for the financial year ended 

31st March, 2019. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 

 

2 

To approve appointment of Mrs. Premlata Purohit (DIN: 07846020) as an    Independent Director of    the company 

as Ordinary Resolution. 

  4. To approve Re-appointment of Mr. Arvind Bansilal Sharma (DIN: 03580605) as an Independent Director of the 

Company as Special Resolution. 

            
 

 

 

Signed this  day of  ,2019. 

 
 
 

 
------------------------------------------ 

 
 

Signature of Proxy Shareholder Signature of Shareholder 

Notes: 

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 

not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

 

2. Notwithstanding the above, Proxies can vote on such other items which may be tabled at the meeting by the shareholders 

present. 

 

Name of the Member(s):     

Registered Address:   

E Mail ID:  Folio No./DP ID and Client ID:   

Affix 
Re. 1 

Revenue 

Stamp 

mailto:hitkit.global@gmail.com
http://www.hitkitglobal.com/
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Notes 
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                                                                  Hit Kit Global Solutions Limited 

                                                    CIN   No.L70100MH1988PLC049929 

Registered office: 55, Tirupati Plaza, 1st Floor, 

                                                                  Tirupati Shopping Centre Premises Co-Op. Society Ltd.,  
                                                                           S V Road, Santacruz (W), Mumbai 400 054 

                                          Tel no. 91-22- 6561 4984, Fax : 91-22- 2600 2894 

                             E-mail: hitkit.global@gmail.com Website www.hitkitglobal.com 

                                                                       Attendance Slip for 31st Annual General Meeting (to            

be handed over at the Registration Counter) 
 

 

I/We hereby record my / our presence at the 31st Annual General Meeting of the Company on Saturday, 

30th September, 2019 at 10.30 a.m. at Kamal Banquet Hall, 188/1500-1501, Best Road, Opp. 

Neeta Bldg., Near Oshiwara Bus Depot, Motilal Nagar I, Goregaon West, Mumbai, 

Maharashtra 400104 

 

 

 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Signature of the Member/Proxy/Authorised Representative 

 
 

-------------------------------------------------------------Cut here --------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
 

ENTRY PASS 

(To be retained throughout the Meeting) 

 

 

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS 

EVSN(Electronic Voting 

Sequence Number) 

USER ID PASSWORD/PAN 

190904054   

 

Note: Please read the instructions for e-voting given along with notice of the 36th Annual General Meeting. 

The Voting period starts from Wednesday, 25th September, 2019 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Friday, 

27thSeptember, 2019 at 5.00 p.m. The voting module shall be disabled by CSDL for voting thereafter. 
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